










 

Proclamation 
 

Whereas, the Central Texas Chapter of the Texas Association for the Education of Young 

Children, in conjunction with the Texas Association for the Education of Young Children 

(TXAEYC) and National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC), are 

celebrating the 50th Anniversary of Week of the Young Child™, April 10-16, 2021; and  

Whereas, these organizations are working to promote and inspire high quality early childhood 

experiences for our state’s youngest citizens, that can provide a foundation of learning and 

success for children in Harker Heights, Texas; and  

Whereas, teachers and others who work with or on behalf of young children birth through age 

eight, who make a difference in the lives of young children in Harker Heights deserve thanks and 

recognition; and  

Whereas, public policies that support early learning for all young children are crucial to young 

children’s futures and to the prosperity of our society.  

NOW, THEREFORE I, Spencer H. Smith, Mayor of Harker Heights, Texas, do hereby 

proclaim April 10-16, 2021 as the  

 

“Week of the Young Child” 

in Harker Heights, Texas and encourage all citizens to work to support and invest in early 

childhood in Harker Heights. 

In Witness Thereof, I have set my hand and have affixed the Seal of the City of Harker Heights, 

Texas, this 13th day of April 2021. 

     

 

 

___________________________ 

      Spencer H. Smith 

      Mayor 



Minutes of the of the City Council meeting held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 23, 2021, by a telephonic 
meeting to contain the spread of COVID-19 in accordance with Governor Abbott’s declaration of the COVID-19 
public health threat and action to temporarily suspend certain provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act issued 
on March 16, 2020:  
 
Roll Call: Spencer H. Smith  Mayor 

Michael Blomquist  Mayor Pro-tem 
Jennifer McCann  Councilmember Place 1 
Jackeline Soriano Fountain Councilmember Place 3 
Lynda Nash   Councilmember Place 4 
Jody Nicholas   Councilmember Place 5  
   
David Mitchell   City Manager 
Julie Helsham   City Secretary 
 

Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations: 
 

1. Mayor Smith presented a Certificate of Appreciation to VFW Post 3892 Commander Willie Keller, 
Senior Vice Commander Jimmie Surles, Junior Vice Commander Warren Close, and Auxiliary President, 
Pamela Duncan, Auxiliary Chaplin Michelle Booker, and Auxiliary member Ana-Luisa Tapia, in 
recognition of the assistance they provided to the citizens of Harker Heights, Texas, during the February 
2021 Severe Winter Storm event.  

 
2. Mayor Smith recognized Assistant City Manager Jerry Bark for receiving the Dan Whitworth Fellow 

Award, the highest honor the Texas Recreation and Park Society can bestow.  
 
Consent Items: 

 
1. Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the meeting held on March 9, 2021. McCann 

made the motion to approve as written. Seconded by Nicholas. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0.   
  
2. Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

amending Ordinance 2020-06 of the Harker Heights Code to extend the COVID-19 Public Health 
Emergency Declaration through May 3, 2021. Blomquist made the motion to approve. Seconded by 
Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 

3. Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
amending Ordinance 2021-08 of the Harker Heights Code to extend the Winter Storm State of Disaster 
Emergency Declaration through April 30, 2021. McCann made the motion to approve. Seconded by 
Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 

 
4. Council discussed and considered approving the Appointment of Steve Moody as Presiding Election 

Judge and Patricia Darnell as Alternate Judge for the May 01, 2021, Joint Harker Heights Municipal 
Election with Killeen Independent School District. Nash made the motion to approve. Seconded by 
Nicholas. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 

 
5. Council discussed and considered approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

amending Ordinance 2010-33, Section 34.04 of the Harker Heights Code to modify the designation of the 
Records Management Officer within Chapter 34 of the Harker Heights Code of Ordinances. Fountain 
made the motion to approve. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



New Business: 
 

1. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, authorizing continued participation with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by 
Oncor; and authorizing the payment of six cents Per Capita to the Steering Committee to fund Regulatory 
and Legal Proceedings and activities related to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC. Ayesha Lealiiee, 
Finance Director, made the presentation. Nicholas made the motion to approve. Seconded by Nash. All in 
favor. Motion approved 5-0. 

 
2. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker 

Heights, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to sign the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Temple, 
Texas, for the use of a decommissioned Temple Fire Engine. Paul Sims, Fire Chief, made the 
presentation. McCann made the motion to approve. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion 
approved 5-0. 

 
3. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker 

Heights, Texas, awarding a contract for the Central Fire Station Pavement Reconstruction Project in the 
amount of $139,270.00 to HCS, Inc Commercial General Contractor; authorize the City Manager to act 
and sign on behalf of the City. Mark Hyde, Public Works Director, made the presentation. Blomquist 
made the motion to approve. Seconded by McCann. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 

 
4. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker 

Heights, Texas, awarding a contract for the Pinewood Drive Drainage Channel Scour Protection Project 
in the amount of $179,926.00 to Myers Concrete Construction, LP; authorize the City Manager to act and 
sign on behalf of the City. Mark Hyde, Public Works Director, made the presentation. McCann made the 
motion to approve. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 

 
Items from Council: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Blomquist stated that we are rapidly approaching April 1st which is going to be the last day for 
submitting Voter Registration Applications in time to vote in the upcoming Municipal and Killeen Independent 
School District Election. Blomquist urged all citizens that have not registered to vote or need to submit a 
transfer of registration in time to vote to make sure to get out there to make this deadline of April 1st.  Blomquist 
stated that it is one weak closer to the Farmers’ Market starting its Grand Opening for this Spring, and he is 
excited to steal some of the City Manger’s thunder to announce that the new location for the Farmers’ Market is 
going to be at the Harker Heights City Hall starting on May 8th. 
 
Councilmember Fountain stated that on Saturday, March 14th she attended with Councilmember Nash the 
Celebration of Female Veterans at the VFW and it was an excellent event. She visited the Parks and Recreation 
Center and learned of a program which allows citizens to rent a bag of sport gear to enjoy the outdoors. 
Fountain stated that she got to attend one of the kid’s soccer games and is glad to see the kids playing soccer. 
 
Staff Reports: 
                           
1. Council received and discussed the City Manager’s Report. David Mitchell, City Manager, made the 

presentation. No action taken. 
 

Announcements: 
 
Councilmember Fountain stated that she got a chance to visit the City landfill. Fountain stated that the City is 
going through a transition and the landfill personnel were doing a great job.  Every container was full this 
weekend because citizens were taking their trash to the landfill to make sure that they were doing their spring 
cleanup.  Fountain thanked Bob Massey, KDH reporter, for running the articles regarding the new solid waste 
process for the City and what citizens are supposed to do.  Fountain stated there are still residences not doing what 
they are supposed to do, and the City really needs the citizens help to be able to get the program to run efficiently 
and be as seamless as possible.  
 
 
 



Mayor Smith followed up with the comments made by Councilmember Fountain and stated that a lot of citizens 
are unaware of the new changes.  Mayor Smith stated we have the opportunity to help our neighbors. Most of the 
citizens are doing it the right way by having the trashcan handle pointed towards their house with the lids down, 
those are the folks that understand it, and they need to tell their neighbors.  That is what the City needs, citizens 
being neighborly. 
 
Mayor Smith stated that he had a lot of time to reflect while he was away and thought about all the City has gone 
through with COVID-19 and the Winter Storms and just wanted to read one of his favorite quotes from President 
Abraham Lincoln’s Second Inaugural Address on Saturday, March 4, 1865: 
 
“With malice toward none, and charity for all, with firmness in the right, as God gives us to see the right, let us 
strive on to finish the work we are in; to bind up the nation’s wounds; to care for him who shall have borne the 
battle, and for his widow, and his orphan – to do all which may achieve and cherish a just and lasting peace 
among ourselves, and with all nations. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at 5:51 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

                CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 
 

 
 

___________________________________ 
                                                   Spencer H. Smith, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

      
Julie Helsham, City Secretary 



Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-07                         AGENDA ITEM VII-1 
FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                   DATE:    APRIL 13, 2021 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE THE 

ZONING DESIGNATION FROM PD-R (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT RESIDENTIAL) 

TO B-4 (SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED AS STONEWALL RIDGE PHASE I, LOT TRACT A, (FUTURE 

DEVELOPMENT), ACRES 1.466, GENERALLY LOCATED NEAR THE 

INTERSECTION OF NOLA RUTH BLVD. AND OLD NOLANVILLE ROAD, HARKER 

HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant has requested a change from the current zoning of PD-R (Planned Development 

Residential) with a base zoning of R1-A (Single Family Garden Home Residential District) to B-

4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) on property located on the southeast corner of Old 

Nolanville Road and Nola Ruth Boulevard. The property consists of approximately 1.466 acres. 

The current property owner desires to develop the property as a commercial lot with the intent to 

utilize zoning classes up to and including B-4.   

 

The subject property in its entirety was previously zoned for PD-R at the request of the previous 

owner. The current zoning designation was initially approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission on January 28, 2015, and later approved by the City Council on February 10, 2015. 

The plats referred to as Stonewall Ridge Phases One and Two took advantage of the PD-R 

zoning and developed the existing forty (40) single family homes. The remaining 1.466 acres of 

undeveloped land was then identified as “Future Development”. 

 

LAND USE: 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Vacant/Right-of-Way Vacant/Right-of-Way Vacant/Right-of-Way 

South Single Family Residential Commercial PD-R 

East Single Family Residential Commercial R-1 

West Commercial Commercial B-4 

 

The proposed development is currently vacant land. According to the Future Land Use Map 

(FLUM) within the 2007 Comprehensive Plan, the property was designated as Commercial. 

However, in 2015 the 2007 FLUM was amended for this parcel in order to allow residential 

development. As a result, the proposed zoning change to B-4 is not in accordance with the 2015 

FLUM amendment for this parcel.  

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

NOTICES: 

Staff sent out a total of thirty-seven (37) notices to property owners within the 400-foot 

notification area. As of March 31, 2021, staff received zero (0) responses in favor of the request, 

and six (6) responses in opposition of the request. Three (3) of the responses in opposition are 

located within the regulatory 200-foot notification buffer.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended disapproval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance to allow 

a change in the zoning designation from PD-R (Planned Development Residential) to B-4 

(Secondary and Highway Business District) on property described as Stonewall Ridge Phase I, 

Lot Tract A, (Future Development), Acres 1.466, generally located near the intersection of Nola 

Ruth Blvd. and Old Nolanville Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the 

following:  

 

1. The proposed zoning request is not consistent with the 2015 site amendment (Ordinance 

2015-02) to the 2007 Future Land Use Plan. 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

Following a public hearing held on March 31, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 

(9-0) to recommend denial of an ordinance to change zoning designation from PD-R (Planned 

Development Residential) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) on property 

described as Stonewall Ridge Phase I, Lot Tract A, (Future Development), Acres 1.466, 

generally located near the intersection of Nola Ruth Blvd. and Old Nolanville Road, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas, due to the inconsistency with the request per the 2015 site 

amendment (Ordinance 2015-02) to the 2007 Future Land Use Plan and concerns with vehicular 

and pedestrian safety as it exists to date. 

 

In accordance with § 155.212(D)(2) of the City’s code of ordinances, the proposed zoning 

change shall not become effective except by a three-fourths approval vote by the City 

Council since the proposed case was not approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE an Ordinance to change zoning designation from 

PD-R (Planned Development Residential) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business 

District) on property described as Stonewall Ridge Phase I, Lot Tract A, (Future 

Development), Acres 1.466, generally located near the intersection of Nola Ruth Blvd. 

and Old Nolanville Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas.  

2. Any other action desired. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. B-4 Adopted Code 

4. PD-R Ordinance #2015-02 

5. Location Map 

6. Zoning Map 

7. Existing Land Use Map 

8. Future Land Use Map 

9. Notification Map 

10. Citizen Responses 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

PD-R ZONING ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS STONEWALL RIDGE PHASE 

I, LOT TRACT A, (FUTURE DEVELOPMENT), ACRES 1.466, GENERALLY 

LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF NOLA RUTH BLVD. AND OLD 

NOLANVILLE ROAD, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned of PD-R (Planned 

Development Residential), is hereby rezoned to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business 

District): 

Stonewall Ridge Phase I, Lot Tract A, (Future Development), Acres 

1.466, generally located near the intersection of Nola Ruth Blvd. and Old 

Nolanville Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas  

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

04/13/21 Granting B-4 zoning on property 

described as Stonewall Ridge Phase I, 

Lot Tract A, (Future Development), 

Acres 1.466, generally located near the 

intersection of Nola Ruth Blvd. and 

Old Nolanville Road, Harker Heights, 

Bell County, Texas. 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on April 13, 2021 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 





§ 155.031  B-4 SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses.

      (1)   Any use permitted in the B-3 Local Business District that is permitted by right.

      (2)   Automobile parking lots.

      (3)   Bakery (wholesale).

      (4)   Dance hall and skating rink.

      (5)   Frozen food locker plant.

      (6)   Garage, public.

      (7)   Drive-in theater.

      (8)   Bowling alley.

      (9)   Tourist court or motel.

      (10)     Antique shop.

      (11)     Secondhand goods store: (No outside display, repair or storage.)

      (12)     Automobile and marine sales and re-pair, provided that:

         (a)   All service must take place in the interior (service bays) of the building. No tents may be used for repair or service,
except during times of urgent public necessity as declared by the Mayor or the Planning and Development Director and
posted as such at the main entrance to the City Hall.

         (b)   Oil storage facilities and refuse containers shall be screened from the view of travelers along public streets;

         (c)   There shall be no vehicle storage longer than 30 days, or auto sales including vehicles belonging to the owner
(except for sales lots);

         (d)   There shall be no dismantling or wrecking on premises;

         (e)   The use shall be operated in accordance with all applicable regulations including licensing from all government
agencies that have jurisdiction; and

         (f)   Gasoline storage tanks must be underground.

      (13)     Building material or lumber sales (no outside storage without screening).

      (14)     Cleaning, pressing and dyeing.

         (a)   No direct exterior exhaust from cleaning plant permitted.

         (b)   Dust must be controlled by either bag or filter and separator or precipitator so as to eliminate the exhausting of
dust, odor, fumes or noise outside the plant.

      (15)     Florist, garden shop, greenhouse, or nursery (retail).

      (16)    Ball park, stadium, athletic field (private).

      (17)    Philanthropic institutions (not else-where listed).

      (18)    Cabinet, upholstery, woodworking shop.

      (19)     Plumbing, electrical, air conditioning service shop (no outside storage without screening).

      (20)     Trade or business school.

      (21)     Any retail business not included in the Local Business District, provided that such use is not noxious or offensive
by reason of vibrations, smoke, light, odor, dust, gas or noise.

      (23)     Package liquor store (in wet areas only and subject to TABC regulations). The property, if located outside the
commercial zone of Business Hwy 190, must:

         (a)   Be part of a commercial development containing a minimum of 12,000 square feet of leaseable retail floor space
(for example, a shopping center or mall); and

         (b)    Be located a minimum of 300 feet, measured from the front door to the establishment, from any R zoned property
by the most commonly traveled public roadway.

      (24)   Brewpub or winery (in wet areas only and subject to TABC regulations). The property, if located outside the
commercial zone of Business Hwy 190 or I-14, must be located a minimum of 300 feet from any R zoned property,
measured from the front door of the establishment by the most commonly traveled public roadway. All manufacture,
blending, fermentation, processing, and packaging of alcoholic beverages must take place wholly inside a building.



   (B)   Conditional uses.  Any use permitted in a more restricted district that is permitted by a conditional use permit.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed three and one-half stories or 45 feet in height.

   (D)   Area regulations. The same as provided for B-2 District.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  There are no minimum lot area or lot width requirements.

   (F)   Parking regulations.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (G)   Signage.  As per Chapter 151.

   (H)   Screening requirements. As per § 155.050.

   (I)   Building facade. As per § 155.040.

   (J)   Landscaping requirements. As per § 155.051.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2019-14, passed 5-28-19)



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
Doc::= 00005"'-8 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING PD-R ZONING ON 10.275 ACRES LOCATED 
AT SE CORNER OF NOLA RUTH BOULEVARD AND OLD NOLANVILLE 
ROAD. 

WHEREAS, the City Council ("Councif') of the City of Harker Heights ("City") finds 
that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of 
the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and 
desirable to amend the Code of Harker Heights ("Code") as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, 
and notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, 
all in strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 
Dwelling District), be rezoned to PD-R (Planned Development- Residential District) with 
conditions described in the attached Exhibit A: PD-R Conditional Uses excepting Townhouse 
uses and conditions, following the layout illustrated in Exhibit B: Site Development Plan 
excepting Townhouse uses and conditions, and following the elevations presented in Exhibit C: 
Elevations. 

10.275 acres described in Exhibit D, commonly known as SE Corner of Nola Ruth 
Boulevard and Old Nolanville Road 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code 1s hereby 
supplemented by adding the following entry: 

Ord. No. 
2015-02 

Date Passed 
02/10/15 

Pagel of 2 

Description 
Granting PD-R (Planned 
Development-Residential District) 
on 10.275 acres located at SE 
Corner of Nola Ruth Boulevard and 
Old Nolanville Road. 



SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after it·s passage, and the City 
Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on February 10, 2015. 

• \ t- :-~ '"" -
· '" .·· d~ ~ ~:.:.'.'~,? ,·· r , .. ·· ... 1 

--" . <-·· '}-·, ' 1-.-:· .. <'' .- .:_" _: I ; , ( .._ ,,... 
• • ~ -- ,. I • Cl ·- : . , __ .,. : ::r 
u :_ / (f : - 1 . ·. ' ' . : (.., . 

•• 1_ i . I ·l .: : 

A S::f.- ~ ·,.~ .. •·• .. ,· _ .. -

~·~ ~ 

d~~ 
r if Robins~ ----

Patricia Brunson, City Secretary 

Page 2 of2 



l!XHIBIT A 
PD-R Conditional Uses 

Nola Ruth Boulevard & Old Noranville Road 

Sectio• t -Protect Statement; 
The purpose and intent of the Nola Ruth/Old Nolanville Road Planned Development-Resicknlial 
(PD-R) District is to allow for the design and construction of single family garden homes. 

The property is a 10.275 acre tract out of the F.D. Cox Survey, Abstract No. A-0220BC, located at 
the southeast intersection of Nola Ruth Boulevard and Old Nolanville Road. 

Sectiop l - Land Use a Buildia1 Recufatioga witlai• ttae PD-R Zogin1; 

I. Single Family Gardea Home Area: 

A. The planned residential area of the PD-R located on the property shall consist of 
Single-Family housing only. 

B. The only permitted use shall be that of single family garden home housing and shall 
fully comply with the requirements as stated under R-1 A Zoning Code in accordance 
with the provisions of the REDLINED Sectlo11 155.012, R-1 A Single Family Garden 
Home Residential District. Harker Heights Code of Ordinances attached here. Tllu 
sect/011 Is displayed /11 Appendix "A" and Is matk a part of ti,/$ docume11t by 
refere11ce J,en/11. 

Sectiop J - Conditjogs o(PD-R Zonia•; la addition to the Conditions outlined below, all 
development within the boundaria of the PD-R shall meet or exceed currently adopted 
standards stated la the PD District Regulatfon1, and be ia accordance witll the provision• of 
Sect/011 155.0J6, and the Subdivision and Zonin1 requirements set forth ia the Harker Heights 
Code of Ordinance,. 

I. Open Space Buffers: In accordance with the provisions of Section 155. OJ6 (B) (1), PD District, 
Harker Heights Code of Ordinances. The open space buffers shall be cleared of all cedar trees 
and the like leaving only hardwood trees and desirable native plant material. The disturbed 
areas will then be re-seeded with native grasses and wildflowers. Open space buffers may 
also serve as fenced backyards of the single family garden homes or townhouse homes. 

2. Landscapina: The type and placement of all required landscaping shall be noted in a 
Landscaping Plan approved by the City Manager or his designated appointee to minimize the 
impact of the PD-R on the bordering R-1 District. 

A. Sin1le family Gardea Home Area: In accordance with the provisions of Section 
155.022, Single Family Garden Home Residential District, Harker Heights Code of 
Ordinances. 

3. Height of Buildinu: 

A. Sin1le family Gardea Home Area: In accordance with the provisions of Section 
/55.022. Single Family Garden Home Residential District. Harker Heights Code of 
Ordinances. 

Page 1 of 4 



!XHIBIT A 
PD-R Conditional Uses 

Nola Ruth Boulevard & Old Nolanville Road 

4. Fensina and Screenin1: In accordance with the provisions of Section 155.050, Screening 
Requirements. Harker Heights Code of Ordinances. 

5. Setbacks: 

A. Slap Family Gardea Home Area: In accordance with the provisions of Section 
155.021, SingJe Family Garden Horne Residential District, Harker Heights Code of 
Ordinances. 

6. Buildina Facade: In accordance with the provisions of Section 155.040 (2), Additional Use, 
etc ... , Harker Heights Code of Ordinances and with the final building elevations (i.e. a list of 
and quality of materials being used) in the construction of the residential unit/units be subject 
to a final review by City Staff and will be based upon the submitted elevation samples. 

7. Entrances & Parkin&; In accordance with the provisions of Section 155.061 through 155.068, 
Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements. Harker Heights Code of Ordinances. In 
addition, the totaJ number of covered parking spaces and garages shall be equal to at least 500-4 
of total number of residential units. 

8. The PD-R shall comply with all applicable storm water management policies and procedures 
governed by the authorities having jurisdiction over this project. 

9. The PD-R shall provide additional means of wastewater management if necessary. 

I 0. This shall include the implementation of a waste water lift station adequately sized by a 
qualified professional engineer for the demands specifically associated with the development. 

11. The PD-R shall comply with all fire protection requirements as outlined in the 2009 
International Fire Code and the City of Harker Height Code of Ordinance. 

12. The PD-R shall provide at least the required public and private easements upon platting. 

13. Preliminary and final plats for the PD-R shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter I 54: Suhdivi3iom, Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, with any modifications to the 
development plan approved by the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission. 

14. Sidewalks shall meet all standards and requirements set forth in the City of Harker Heights 
Code of Ordinances. 

Pa1e 2 of 4 



l!XHIIHT A 
PD-R Conditional Uses 

Nola Ruth Boulevard & Old Nolanville Road 

APPENDIX "A" 

Harker Heights Code of Ordinances 

§ 155.022 RJ-A SINGLE-FAMILY GARDEN HOME RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

(A) Permitted uses. Any use pennitted by right in the R-l District, if it meets required standards. 

(B) Conditional uses. Any conditional use pennitted in the R- l District, if it meets required 
standards. 

(C) Height regulations. Same as in R-l District. 

(D) Area regulations. 

( l) Front yard. There shall be a front yard having a depth of not less than .12~ feet. Where lots have 
double frontage running through from one street to another, the required front yard shall be provided 
on both streets. 

(2) Side yard. The minimum side yard setback for any comer lot shall be l~ feet. Other residences 
may be located such that one of the side yards will be zero; that is, the building may be constructed on 
the property line, provided: 

(a) The minimum spacing between residences must be 15 feet, except that if the "RI-A" lot is adjacent 
to and shares a common boundary with a lot zoned "R-1," the required minimum spacing between 
structures shall not be less than 15 feet; 

(b) The wall located on the property line shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with all 
other applicable codes and ordinances; and 
( c) A five foot wide maintenance easement, shown on the approved subdivision plat, shall be provided 
across the full depth of the adjacent lot abutting the wall on the property line. 

(3) Rear yard There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than 12~ feet. 

(E) Intensity of use. All projects must contain a minimum of one and one half acres of property. No 
subdivision may contain less than ten individual lots. 

( 1) Lot area. No building shall be constructed on any lot less than 4,~ square feet of area. 

(2) Lot width. The width of the lot shall not be less than 46 feet at the fmAt stPeet eYilaiAg liAe, Aer 
she» its average width! be less thaA I~ h!et. On comer lots, with two street frontages, the minimum 
width shall be not less than 55 feet at its averaae . .,.... 
(3) lot depth. The average depth of the lot shall be not less than 65+00 feet. except that a comer lot 
having a minimum width of not less than 5S feet may have an average depth of less than 65..J.OO-fcet. 
provided that the minimum depth is not less than 6~ feet. 

(F) Parking regulations. Same as in R- l District. 

(0) Storage. Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents' use, such as firewood, 
gardening materials, and similar materials. 

(H) Floor area. Minimum livable tloor area shall be I.~~ square feet. 

Pa1e 3of 4 



PD-R Conditional Uses 
Nola Ruth Boulevard & Old Nolanville Road 

(I) Additional requirements. All structures shaJI have brick veneer on all sides or approved equal. 
"Approved Equal" shall be determined by the City Mana&er or his desiiflatcd appointee. and will 
take into account the character of the development. type of material. color. texture, and cohesiveness 
with the existina neial)borhood. ,-

(J) Landscaping. All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and 
quantity, or other city-approved groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final 
inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees, measuring two inches or more in 
caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk. and eight three-gallon 
shrubs, are required in the front yard. 

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06) www.amlegal. 

can/alptaipls/get-contentaepx 

Pap 4of 4 





*ACS/TRC* BELL  Doc: 000028540   Date: 07/09/2008  Vol: 0000000  Page: 00000  Page: 1 Of 4

EXHIBIT DRP 07/09/2008 
Doc~ 000285-"i-0 

Notice of confidentiality rights: If you are a natural person, you may remove or strike any 
or all of the following information from any instrument that transfers an interest in real 
property before it is filed for record in the public records: your Social Security number or 
your driver's license number. 

WARRANTY DEED 
with Vendor's Lien 

DATE: July 3, 2008 

GRANTOR: CYNTHIA JO COCKRELL DYKES and RICKY DAN GIBBS 
AND STEVEN WAYNE SHREEVE 

GRANTOR'S MAILING ADDRESS: 1551 E. Veterans Memorial Blvd., 
Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas 76548 

GRANTEE: SGSB LAND HOLDINGS, LLC., a Texas limited liability company 

GRANTEE'S MAILING ADDRESS: 812 S. Presa SL San Antonio, 
Bexar County, Texas 78210 

CONSIDERATION: The sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars and other good and valuable 
consideration, including a prnmissory note of even date executed by Grantee and payable to the 
order of TEXAS ST AR BANK, S.S.B. in the principal amount of TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($280,500.00). The note is secured by 
the first and superior vendor's lien against, and superior title to, the Property retained in this deed 
in favor of TEXAS STAR BANK, S.S.B. and is also secured by a first-lien deed of trust of even 
date from Grantee to STEVE JOHNSON, Trustee. 

PROPERTY (INCLUDING ANY IMPROVEMENTS): 

A tract of land out of the F. D. Cox Survey, Abstract No. 220, in Bell County, Texas, containing 
I 0.280 acres of land, more or less, and being more particularly described by metes and bounds in 
Exhibit ''A" attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

RESERVATIONS FROM CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY: NONE 

EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY: 

I. Easement to Texas Power & Light Company recorded in Volume 556, Page 632, Volume 
819, Page 371, Volume 1167, Page 864, Deed Records of Falls County, Texas; 

2. Easement to Bell County WC & ID No. 4 recorded in Volume 1868, Page 625, Deed 
Records of Bell County, Texas; 

3. Declaration of taking by the United States of America recorded in Volume 504, Page 
536, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas; and 



*ACS/TRC* BELL  Doc: 000028540   Date: 07/09/2008  Vol: 0000000  Page: 00000  Page: 2 Of 4

EXHIBIT D

4. Agreed Judgment to the State of Texas in Volume 1166, Page 568, Deed Records of Bell 
County, Texas. 

Grantor, for and in consideration and subject to the reservations from and exceptions to 
conveyance and warranty, grants, sells, and conveys to Grantee the property, together with all 
and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging, to have and hold it to 
Grantee, Grantee's heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns forever. Grantor 
hereby binds Grantor and Grantor's heirs, executors, administrators, and successors to warrant 
and for ever defend all and singular the property to Grantee and Grantee's heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to 
claim the same or any part thereof, except as to the reservations from and exceptions to warranty. 

TEXAS ST AR BANK, S.S . .B., at Grantee's request, has paid in cash to Grantor that portion of 
the purchase price of the property that is evidenced by the note described. The vendor's lien and 
superior title to the property are retained for the benefit of TEXAS ST AR BANK, S.S.B. and are 
transferred to that party without recourse on Grantor. 

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns includes the plural. 

~NES~ 

ST A TE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BELL 

COUNTY OF BELL 

. This ins~ument was acknowledged,.before me on the31{ day of July, 2008 by Ricky Dan 
Gibbs. l-i ""\ It t-\-cnv .... i~~:" ~ l-f'(·I (: ._ii'\ t1 '-/ \)u l..t '.., 

..... .t. •••••• UUA069* --! I U' 1 ~ ~, 

1 

.. .-~·;;~·~t;~ THERESA SCHU~TZE!t 1\ Ii?,;; /L£;"'1n I i ) -
l~·~· -A Notary Public ;; ~ f l,{, j "--, '- ·· _, 

~~:.~_:*~ STATE OF TEXAS i NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
\~· .... :.;/ My Commission ! the State of Texas 

·~.?of.,;." Expires 09/19/2008: 
................... 0.011•90.,•••11•1.<(l.1.<0l 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BELL - r 

Th ~~\t-~~~1:,,,~~A*tls~t'l~,e_d_ before, ~e on the (~rL day of July, 
stev -"'~*6'<]htil S CHU~TZE: .:,..\-(v ... , w( ... ·'l~ '.Jh~ 

i~: ·."' o I.try Pub he ~ , ~ 
~ti-· ·~E STATE OF TEXAS : t. • )~ , -:. • • : ,~ ,,. J ,, ,J J t, I, 
\~~ ... ~i my Ci:>mmission : --'-__;:,-""-""""''-' -'J--'-"-','--~-=L.A--C=-=--=¥-

···,, ... 9,f.~,,·· Expires 09/19/2008: 
........... 9\\.,,.4,V.,i,l.4,ljf,,0.4',,ll,\U;&-'J,tl.:SC.~rtJS.N'"'""" i 

2008, by 



*ACS/TRC* BELL  Doc: 000028540   Date: 07/09/2008  Vol: 0000000  Page: 00000  Page: 3 Of 4

EXHIBIT D

DILLARD HOMES 
10.275 ACRES 

' 

FIELD NOTES for a 10.275 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, part of the F. D. Cox Survey, Absh·act No. 
220, and the land herein described being part of a called 10.92 acre tract conveyed to Grady A. Cockrell and Park 
Gibbs, of record in Volume 1011, Page 653, Deed Records of Bell County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a 3/8" iron rod, found on the east right-of-way line of Nola Ruth Boulevard at the southwest comer 
of said 10.92 acre tract, being the northwest corner of Lot I, Block 1, Preswick Hills, an addition to the City of 
Harker Heights, Texas, of record in Cabinet A, Slide 19-B, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, for the southwest 
comer of this tract; 

THENCE N. 17° 01' 58'' 'It, 716.86 feet, with the west line of said 10.92 acre tract and the east line of said Nola 
Ruth Boulevard, to a brass cap monument, found at a cut back in the south right-of-way line ofU. S. Highway 190, 
for an angle comer of this tract; 

THENCE N. 64° 20' 05" K, 67.35 feet, with said cut back, to a brass cap monument, found on the south right-of· 
way line of Old Nolanville Road on the north line of said 10.92 acre tract, for an angle comer of this tract; 

THENCE with the south right-of-way line of said Old Nolanville Road and the north line of said 10.92 acre tract, 
the following three (3) courses: 

I. S. 63° 50' 33" E., 202.6Jl feet, to a 1/2" iron rod, found for an interior comer of this tract; 
2. N. 21° 12' 23" E., 19.95 feet, to a 1/2" iron rod, found for an exterior corner of this tract; 
3. S. 80° 52' 02" E., 164.84 feet, to a 3/8" iron rod with cap, set at the northwest corner of a called 0.87 acre 

tract conveyed to Joe R. Hernandez and wife Rosa Hernandez, ofrecord in Volume 1675, Page 101, Deed 
Records of Bell County, Texas, for the northerly northeast comer of this tract; 

THENCE S. 241° 50' 44" W., 171.45 Jfeiet, generally with fence on the west line of said 0. 87 acre tract, to a 3/8" iron 
rod, found at the southwest comer of said 0.87 acre tract, for an interior comer of this tract; 

THENCE S. 72° 37' l[H" E., 255.68 feet, generally with fence on the south line of said 0.87 acre tract, to a 3/4" iron 
pipe, found at the southeast corner of said 0.87 acre tract, being on the west line of a tract to William Elet Warren, 
Jr. et al, ofrecord in Volnrne 4446, Page 720, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas, for the 
southerly northeast comer of this h·act; 

THENCE S. ].7° 20' 3Jl" W., 534.5:1. feet, generally with fence on the east line of said 10.92 acre tract, to a 1" iron 
pipe, found at the northwest corner of Briarwood Estates, Phase IV, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, 
Texas, ofrecord in Cabinet C, Slide 324-C, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, for an angle corner of this tract; 

THENCE§, rn° 13' 5X" W,, 64.76 feet, generally with fence on the east line of said 10.92 acre tract, to a 5/8" iron 
rod with cap, found at the southeast comer of said 10.92 acre tract, being the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 1, said 
Preswick Hills, for an angle corner of this tract; 

THENCE N. 73° Hl' 16" W., 642.411 feet with the south line of said 10.92 and the north line of said Block 1, 
Preswick Hills, to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 10.275 acres ofland. 



*ACS/TRC* BELL  Doc: 000028540   Date: 07/09/2008  Vol: 0000000  Page: 00000  Page: 4 Of 4

EXHIBIT D

Recorded On: July 09, 2008 

Bell County 
Shelley Coston 
County Clerk 

Belton, Texas 76513 

Instrument Number: 2008-00028540 
As 

Recordings 

Parties: DYKES CYNTHIA JO COCKRELL 

To SGSB LAND HOLDINGS LLC 

Comment: 

Recordings 

Total Recording: 

22.00 

22.00 

( Parties listed above are for Clerks reference only ) 

** Examined and Charged as Follows: ** 

Billable Pages: 3 

Number of Pages: 4 

************ DO NOT REMOVE THIS PAGE IS PART OF THE INSTRUMENT************ 
Any provision herein which restricts the Sale, Rental or use of the described REAL PROPERTY 

because of color or race is invalid and unenforceable under federal law. 

File Information: 
Document Number: 2008-00028540 

Receipt Number: 34814 

Recorded Date/Time: July 09, 2008 10:37:51A 

User/ Station: N Mitchell - Cash Station 1 

Record and Return To: 

MONTEITH ABSTRACT & TITLE CO 

106 S EAST ST 
BEL TON TX 76513 

I hereby certify that this instrument was filed on tl1e date and time stamped hereon and was duly recorded in the Real Property 
Records in Bell County, Texas 

Shelley Coston A. . n 
Bell County Clerk ~ C~ 



NOLANVILLE

1124

200

2000

400

1204

2004

1210

402 403

4001310
1308

1306
1304

1317

13151311 1313
1309

1307
1305

1303
1301

401

405

1300
1302

408120412021200 407406

404
1211

1209
1207

1205
1203

1201

750

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY E

NO
LA

RU
TH

BL
VD

STONEWALL RIDGE

STONEWALL RIDGE

OLD NOLANVILLE RD

RO
BI

SO
N

DR

Z21-07

Subject Property
Harker Heights City Limits

Bell Cities
NOLANVILLE

Location

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



NOLANVILLE

1126
1124

200

12081119

2000

1117

1122

400

1204

1120
1118

589

1204

410

1116

1206

2004

413

1210

402 403

4001310
1308

1306

1304 1317
13151311 13131309

1307
1305

1303
1301

401

405

1300
1302

12141212
41112101208

1206 409408
1204

1202
1200

407406

404
1211

1209
1207

1205
1203

1201

413

750

740

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY
 E

WA
LL
ER

DR

NO
LA
RU
TH
BL
VD

OLDNOLANVILLERD

PRESW ICK DR

ST
ON
EW
AL
LR
IDG
E

RO
BI
SO
N 
DR

Z21-07

Subject Property
Hark er Heights City Limits

Zoning Districts
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District
PD-R – Planned Development Residential 
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

Bell Cities
NOLANVILLE

Zoning

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



NOLANVILLE

1126
1124

200

12081119

2000

1117

1122

400

1204

1120
1118

589

1204

410

1116

1206

2004

413

1210

402 403

4001310
1308

1306

1304 1317
13151311 13131309

1307
1305

1303
1301

401

405

1300
1302

12141212
41112101208

1206 409408
1204

1202
1200

407406

404
1211

1209
1207

1205
1203

1201

413

750

740

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY E

WA
LL

ER
DR

NO
LA

RU
TH

BL
VD

OLD NOLANVILLE RD

PRESWICK DR

ST
ON

EW
AL

L R
IDG

E

RO
BI

SO
N 

DR

Z21-07

Subject Property
Harker Heights City Limits

Existing Land Use
Single-Family Residence
Commercial
Public/Semi-Public
USACOE/Drainage
Vacant

Bell Cities
NOLANVILLE

Existing Land Use

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



NOLANVILLE

1126
1124

200

12081119

2000

1117

1122

400

1204

1120
1118

589

1204

410

1116

1206

2004

413

1210

402 403

4001310
1308

1306

1304 1317
13151311 13131309

1307
1305

1303
1301

401

405

1300
1302

12141212
41112101208

1206 409408
1204

1202
1200

407406

404
1211

1209
1207

1205
1203

1201

413

750

740

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY E

WA
LL

ER
DR

NO
LA

RU
TH

BL
VD

OLD NOLANVILLE RD

PRESWICK DR

ST
ON

EW
AL

L R
IDG

E

RO
BI

SO
N 

DR

Z21-07

Subject Property
Harker Heights City Limits

Future Land Use
Single Family Residential
Commercial

Bell Cities
NOLANVILLE

Future Land Use

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



NOLANVILLE

1126

1123

1124

200

12081119

2000

1121

1122

400

1204

1120

1118

589
1210

1204

4101206

2004

413

1210

402 403

4001310
1308

1306

1304 1317
13151311 13131309

1307
1305

1303
1301

401

405

1300
1302

1214
1212

41112101208

1206 409408
1204

1202
1200

407406

404
1211

1209
1207

1205
1203

1201

413

750

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY E
NO

LA
RU

TH
BL

VD

WA
LL

ER
DR

PRESWICK DR

ST
ON

EW
AL

L R
IDG

E

OLD NOLANVILLE RD

RO
BI

SO
N 

DR

Z21-07

Subject Property
400 Ft. Buffer
Recommend Denial (6)
Notified Properties (37)
Harker Heights City Limits

Bell Cities
NOLANVILLE

Notification

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

















Page 1 of 2 

 

            CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-08                     AGENDA ITEM VII-2 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                        DATE: APRIL 13, 2021 

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE THE 

ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO R-2 

(TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS VALLEY 

VIEW SECOND EXTENSION, BLOCK SEVEN (7), LOT SIX (6), ACRES 0.20, 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT 122 E. TURNBO ROAD, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL 

COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 

District) to R-2 (Two Family Dwelling District) on property addressed as 122 E. Turnbo Road. A 

single wide manufactured home currently occupies the subject property. The property consists of 

approximately 8,778 square feet, and the request will enable the applicant to construct one (1) 

duplex on the property as the existing lot meets the intensity of use requirements of the R-2 

zoning district (8,400 square feet).  

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Single Family Residential Mixed Residential 
R-1 

(One Family Dwelling District) 

South Manufactured Home Mixed Residential R-1 

East Manufactured Home Mixed Residential R-1 

West Manufactured Home Mixed Residential R-1 

Per the 2007 Comprehensive Plan, the applicant’s property is located in an area designated as 

Mixed Residential. This designation allows for the construction of site-built single-family 

homes, manufactured housing, and duplexes. A survey of the area identified most of the 

properties to consist of a combination of all of the approved residential forms. Staff therefore 

believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impacts on 

the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2007 City of Harker Heights Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out fifty (50) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. There 

were zero (0) responses received in favor of the request, and zero (0) responses received in 

opposition of the request.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of the request to change 

the zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family 

Dwelling District) on property described as Valley View Second Extension, Block Seven (7), 

Lot Six (6), Acres 0.20, generally located at 122 E. Turnbo Road, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas, based on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

Following a public hearing held on March 31, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

voted (9-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to change the zoning designation from R-

1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on property 

described as Valley View Second Extension, Block Seven (7), Lot Six (6), Acres 0.20, 

generally located at 122 E. Turnbo Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to APRROVE/DISAPPROVE an Ordinance to change the zoning designation 

from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on 

property described as Valley View Second Extension, Block Seven (7), Lot Six (6), 

Acres 0.20, generally located at 122 E. Turnbo Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas. 

2. Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. R-2 Adopted Code 

4. Location Map 

5. Existing Land Use Map 

6. Zoning Map 

7. Future Land Use Map 

8. Notification Map 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER  HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

R-2 ZONING ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 122 EAST TURNBO ROAD, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 

Dwelling District) is rezoned to R-2 (Two Family Dwelling District): 

Valley View Second Extension, Block Seven (7), Lot Six (6), 0.20 Acres, 

generally located at 122 East Turnbo Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

04/13/21 Granting R-2 zoning on property 

located at 122 E. Turnbo Road, 

Harker Heights, Texas. 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on April 13, 2021 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 





Harker Heights Code of Ordinances

§ 155.023  R-2 TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses.

      (1)   Any use permitted by right in the R-1 District, or (subject to the location requirements for such tracts) in the R1-I Districts.

      (2)   Two-family or duplex dwelling.

      (3)   Industrialized duplex dwelling, provided such dwelling complies with all regulations applicable to industrialized single-family
housing.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  Neighborhood association facilities.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Area regulations.  Lots in the Wildewood Subdivision, and duplex lots platted prior to November 8, 2006, shall have six-feet-
minimum side setbacks, except when siding on a street such setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet, All other duplex lots shall have a
minimum of ten-feet-wide side  building setbacks, except when siding on a street such setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet.

   (E)   Intensity of use.

      (1)   A lot on which there is erected a single-family dwelling shall conform to the same intensity of use requirements as those in
the R-1 (Single-Family Dwelling District) as noted in § 155.020(E).

      (2)   The minimum lot area shall be 7,800 square feet for lots in the Wildewood Subdivision and duplex lots platted prior to
November 8, 2006. All other duplex lots shall contain a minimum lot area of 8,400 square feet, and an average width of not less than
70 feet.

   (F)   Parking regulations.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (G)   Additional use, height, and area regulations.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (H)   Signs.  Same as in R-1 district.

   (I)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited, except for materials for the residents' use such as firewood, gardening materials, and
similar materials.

   (J)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees, measuring
two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-gallon shrubs, are
required in the front yard.

   (K)   Architectural design.  R-2 buildings shall be designed to avoid repetitions of buildings or roof lines, and the same elevation
may not be used within any five lot groupings.  Primary entrances shall face the public street. Windows shall be provided with trim or
recessed, rather than flush with exterior wall treatment.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2012-01, passed 2-14-12; Am. Ord. 2012-04, passed
3-27-12; Am. Ord. 2016-24, passed 10-11-16)



128

203

128

120

113

117

121

118
120

123

112

119

122

121

111

123

115

125

122

117

122

124

126

200

125

118

201

120

115

114

116

126

116

202

119

113

11
4

127

127

124

Summit
Soccer

Complex

TURNBO RD

N A
MY

 LN

E VALLEY RD

Z21-08

122 E. Turnbo Rd.

Location

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



128

123

207

203

128

120

116

113

101

200

203

117

204

121

214

118
120

208
212

128

123

112

119

122

121

111

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

122

124

212

126

111

200

209

213

108

208

114

125

108

109

125
204

202

205

124

118

201

105

117

123

120

115

127

109

114

211

107

116

126

107

116

125

202

110

119

127

113

115

119

113

112

112
114

110

111

127

206

210

127

124

205

Summit
Soccer

Complex

COX DR

N A
MY

 LN

BALL RD

TURNBO RD

E VALLEY RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-08

122 E. Turnbo Rd.
Existing Land Use

Single-Family Residence
Duplex
Manufactured Home
Multi-Family Residence
Commercial
Public/Semi-Public
Park/Open Space
USACOE/Drainage
Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



128

123

207

203

128

120

116

113

101

200

203

117

204

121

214

118
120

208
212

128

123

112

119

122

121

111

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

122

124

212

126

111

200

209

213

108

208

114

125

108

109

125
204

202

205

124

118

201

105

117

123

120

115

127

109

114

211

107

116

126

107

116

125

202

110

119

127

113

115

119

113

112

112
114

110

111

127

206

210

127

124

205

Summit
Soccer

Complex

COX DR

N A
MY

 LN

BALL RD

TURNBO RD

E VALLEY RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-08

122 E. Turnbo Rd.
Zoning Districts

B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District
B-5 General Business District
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District
R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District
R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District
R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District
R-MU Mixed Residential

Zoning

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



128

123

207

203

128

120

116

113

101

200

203

117

204

121

214

118
120

208
212

128

123

112

119

122

121

111

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

206

117

122

124

212

126

111

200

209

213

108

208

114

125

108

109

125
204

202

205

124

118

201

105

117

123

120

115

127

109

114

211

107

116

126

107

116

125

202

110

119

127

113

115

119

113

112

112
114

110

111

127

206

210

127

124

205

Summit
Soccer

Complex

COX DR

N A
MY

 LN

BALL RD

TURNBO RD

E VALLEY RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-08

122 E. Turnbo Rd.
Future Land Use

Mixed Residential
Medium Density Residential
Commercial

Future Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



128

101

123

401
107105

218207
203

10
9

128

306

120
116

113

101

200

203
220

102

117

103

204

119

121

214

118
120

301

208
212

128

123

112

106

119

103

111

122

121

108

109

111

123

210

126

115

118

125

122

110

217

206

117

122

124

304

212

126

219

104

111

200

209
213

113

108

208

114

125

108

104
10

9

125

204
221

202

205

215
218

117

124

118

201

121

105

117

123

205

120

115

127

109

114

211

302

107

116

126

103

216

107

116

125

202

410

110

105

119

127

214

113
115

119

106

113

112

112
114

110

102

104

111

106
108

213104
114

216

215

127

206

210

127

124

30
0

205
217

Summit
Soccer

Complex

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

N A
MY

 LN

N
AN

N
BL

VD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

E VALLEY RD

BALL RD

SUMMIT SOCCER COMPLEX

JR
 A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S A

JR
 B

JR A
Z21-08

122 E. Turnbo Rd.
400 Ft. Buffer
Notified Properties (50)

Notification

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



Page 1 of 3 

 

            CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-09                        AGENDA ITEM VII-3 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                              DATE: APRIL 13, 2021 

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE THE 

ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO R-1(M) 

(ONE FAMILY MANUFACTURED HOME DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED AS MEADOW ACRES RETREAT ADDITION AKA RETREAT ADDITION, 

LOT THIRTEEN (13), ACRES 0.16, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 117 BYBEE COURT, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 

ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-1 (One Family Dwelling 

District) to R1-(M) (One Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on property addressed as 

117 Bybee Court. The property consist of approximately 9,048 square feet and the request will 

enable the applicant to place a manufactured home on the property. The placement of the 

manufactured home will be required to adhere to the City’s code as it pertains to private lot 

manufactured homes (see attachment #3). 

 

The subject property was previously taken to the Building and Standards Commission in 2018 

and was determined that a site-built structure on the property was unsafe, substandard, dangerous, 

and in violation of the minimum standards set forth in §160.04 of the City’s code of ordinances. 

The case was ordered by the Commission to be demolish or removed from the property. On 

March 19, 2018, a demolition permit was pulled to remove the structure and all debris including 

foundation and sidewalks. All work was adequately completed, and the lot has remained vacant to 

date. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Single Family Residence Medium Density Residential R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) 

South Single Family Residence Medium Density Residential R-1 

East Single Family Residence Medium Density Residential R-1 

West Single Family Residence Medium Density Residential R-1 

Per the 2007 Comprehensive Plan the applicant’s property is in an area designated as Medium 

Density Residential. Per the adopted comprehensive plan, Medium Density Residential should be 

utilized in the following three conditions: 

1. Should be located where possible as a buffer between commercial and single family uses. 

2. Should be located where possible as a buffer between high-density and single-family 

residential uses. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

3. Is an acceptable replacement for aging manufactured housing or for new development in 

areas zoned appropriately for such within the City. 

A survey of the area identified most of the surrounding properties to be primarily site built single-

family residences within the cul-de-sac street Bybee Court. Per the adopted comprehensive plan, 

manufactured housing should be utilized in the designated Manufactured Home Park or Mixed 

Residence FLUM categories. The rezone request is not consistent with the 2007 City of Harker 

Heights Comprehensive Plan. While the intended use may not likely have any adverse impact on 

the surrounding area, the proposed rezoning but would be the first manufactured home fronting 

Bybee Court. There are manufactured homes on adjacent properties along E. Beeline Lane and E. 

Bob White Lane. However, a manufactured home along Bybee Ct. would not be harmonious with 

the existing uses in the immediate area.  

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out thirty-seven (37) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. 

As of March 31, 2021, staff has received zero (0) responses in favor of the request, and four (4) 

responses in opposition of the request. One (1) of the responses in opposition are located within 

the regulatory 200-foot notification buffer. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended disapproval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of the request to change 

the zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1(M) (One Family 

Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on property described as Meadow Acres Retreat Addition 

AKA Retreat Addition, Lot Thirteen (13), Acres 0.16, generally located at 117 Bybee Ct, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the following:   

 

1. The proposed zoning request is not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan in the adopted 

2007 Comprehensive Plan. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning are inconsistent with the site-built homes along Bybee Court.  

 

ACTION TAKE BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

Following a public hearing held on March 31, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 

(9-0) to recommend denial on the request to change the zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family 

Dwelling District) to R-1(M) (One Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District) on property 

described as Meadow Acres Retreat Addition AKA Retreat Addition, Lot Thirteen (13), Acres 

0.16, generally located at 117 Bybee Ct, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, due to the 

inconsistency of the request with the Future Land Use Plan in the adopted 2007 Comprehensive 

Plan, and that the proposed use and rezoning are inconsistent with the site-built homes along 

Bybee Court. 

 

In accordance with § 155.212(D)(2) of the City’s code of ordinances, the proposed zoning 

change shall not become effective except by a three-fourths approval vote by the City Council 

since the proposed case was not approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE an Ordinance to change the zoning designation from 

R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1(M) (One Family Manufactured Home Dwelling 

District) on property described as Meadow Acres Retreat Addition AKA Retreat Addition, 

Lot Thirteen (13), Acres 0.16, generally located at 117 Bybee Court, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

2. Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. R-1(M) Adopted Code 

4. Location Map 

5. Zoning Map 

6. Existing Land Use Map 

7. Future Land Use Map 

8. Notification Map 

9. Citizen Responses 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING R-1(M) 

(ONE FAMILY MANUFACTURED HOME DWELLING DISTRICT) ZONING ON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 117 BYBEE COURT, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, 

TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property described previously zoned from R-1 

(One Family Dwelling District) is rezoned to R-1(M) (One Family Manufactured Home 

District): 

Meadow Acres Retreat Addition AKA Retreat Addition, Lot Thirteen 

(13), Acres 0.16, generally located at 117 Bybee Ct, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

04/13/21 Granting R-1(M) zoning on property 

described as Meadow Acres Retreat 

Addition AKA Retreat Addition, Lot 

Thirteen (13), Acres 0.16, generally 

located at 117 Bybee Ct, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on April 13, 2021. 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 





§ 155.020  R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted by right:

      (1)   Site-built, single-family dwellings and industrialized housing.

      (2)   Church or other place of worship.

      (3)   Municipal buildings, non-profit libraries or museums, police and fire stations, public utilities (without outside storage
yards or electric substations), public parks, playgrounds, municipal golf courses, public recreation facilities, and community
buildings.

      (4)   Customary home occupations as defined in § 155.003.

      (5)   Accessory structure.

         (a)   One small accessory building (not exceeding 144 square feet) per residence customarily incident to the above
uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject to the following requirements:

            1.   Structure must be built upon a moveable foundation;

            2.   Structure cannot exceed 12 feet in height;

            3.   Structure must set behind the rear facade of the main residence building and must be setback five feet from the
rear property line and six feet from the side property line; and

            4.   Materials, building design, and construction must comply with the requirements of Ch. 150.

         (b)   Large accessory buildings customarily incident to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject
to the following requirements:

            1.   Building materials and facade must be consistent with the main residence building materials and facade;

            2.   Large accessory building must be behind the front facade of the main residence;

            3.   The height of the large accessory building cannot exceed that of the main residence building;

            4.   Number, size, setbacks and height requirements based on the size of the lot as follows:

 

Lot Size

Number of
Large

Accessory
Structures

Allowed

Maximum
Aggregate Size

of All Accessory
Structures

Setbacks Maximum
Height

< 10,000 square feet 1 250 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> 10,000 square feet
< .5 acre 1 500 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> .5 acre
< 1 acre 2 1,000 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

> 1 acre 4 1,500 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

 

      (6)   Private garage.

      (7)   Home based child care.

      (8)   Real estate sales office, or temporary living quarters to provide security during the development of residential
subdivisions, but not to exceed two years.

      (9)   Low impact telecommunication towers.

      (10)   Public schools.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  The following require conditional use permits:

      (1)   Private schools having a curriculum equal to a public elementary, high school, or institution of higher learning
(except home schooling).



      (2)   Neighborhood association facilities.

      (3)   Farms, nurseries, truck gardens and greenhouses, provided no sales offices are maintained and no livestock are
kept within 250 feet of a residence of any person other than the farm owner.

      (4)   Accessory dwelling for a relative or servant (not for rent).

      (5)   Accessory structure as provided by § 155.040.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Front yard, side yard, and rear yard.  As per Table 21-A.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than 8,400 square feet and an average
overall width of not less than 70 feet and a minimum lot frontage of not less than 45 feet.  Except that if a lot or tract should
have less area or width than is herein required and its boundary lines along their entire length should touch lands under
other ownership on the effective date of this chapter and shall not have changed since the date, such parcel of land may be
used for a single family dwelling.

   (F)   Additional use, height, and area regulation.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (G)   R-1(M) zoning designation.  R-1(M) is a one family residential lot that also allows manufactured homes. All
manufactured housing structures installed after December 31, 1999, must be installed on a permanent foundation, as that
term is defined in § 152.01.

      (1)   In order to be approved, the manufactured home must be found to have design compatibility with other dwellings in
the neighborhood.

      (2)   The following standards apply to any placement of a manufactured home on a lot after December 31, 1999:

         (a)   Roofing shall be similar in color, material and appearance to the roofing material commonly used on residential
dwellings within the community or comparable to the predominant materials used on dwellings within the neighborhood.

Materials shall include asphalt composition, shingle, tile, crushed rock, standing seam metal or similar materials (except all
other metal). Roof pitch shall be a minimum of 3/12.

         (b)   Exterior siding shall be similar in color, material, and appearance to the exterior siding material commonly used on
residential dwellings within the community or comparable to predominant materials used on dwellings within the
neighborhood. Exterior siding shall be of brick, wood, stucco, plaster, concrete or other material which is finished in a non-
glossy and non-reflective manner.

         (c)   If a garage/carport is constructed, it must be similar in appearance to others in the neighborhood and constructed
of like materials as that of the primary home.

         (d)   Two all-weather surface off street parking spaces meeting the requirements of § 155.061 shall be provided.

      (3)   Every manufactured home shall be placed so that the entrance or front of the home faces or parallels the principal
street frontage, except:

         (a)   In cases where the lot is one acre or greater and the home is located more than 50 feet from the street; or

         (b)   Where the lot width is 60 feet or less.

      (4)   All entrances to a manufactured home shall be provided with permanent steps, porch or similar suitable entry.

      (5)   The lot must meet all applicable requirements of Chapter 154, and shall comply with the area regulations in (D) of
this section. Variance in setbacks may be given in inches not to exceed one foot at the Building Official’s discretion.

   (H)   Signs   As per Chapter 151.

   (I)   Parking.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (J)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents’ use, such as firewood, gardening
materials, and similar materials.

   (K)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

   (L)   Industrialized housing.

      (1)   Industrialized housing shall be considered real property and must:

         (a)   Have a value equal to or greater than the median taxable value for each single-family dwelling located within 500
feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located, as determined by the most recent certified tax
appraisal roll for the county;

cperes
Highlight

cperes
Highlight

cperes
Highlight

cperes
Highlight

cperes
Highlight

cperes
Highlight



         (b)   Have exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration compatible with the single-family
dwellings located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located;

         (c)   Comply with city aesthetic standards, building setbacks, side and rear yard offsets, subdivision control,
architectural landscaping, square footage, and other site requirements applicable to single-family dwellings;

         (d)   Be securely fixed to a permanent foundation; and

         (e)   Have all local permits and licenses that are applicable to site-built housing.

      For purposes of this division, VALUE means the taxable VALUE of the industrialized housing and lot after installation of
the housing.

      (2)   Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, erect, install or move any industrialized housing into the
city shall first make application to the Building Official and obtain the required permits. In addition to any other information
otherwise required for such permits, the application shall:

         (a)   Identify each single-family dwelling located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be
located, and show the taxable value for each such dwelling, as determined by the most recent certified tax appraisal roll for
the county;

         (b)   Describe the exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration for each single-family dwelling
located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be located;

         (c)   Describe the permanent foundation and method of attachment proposed for the industrialized housing; and

         (d)   State the anticipated taxable value of the industrialized housing and the lot after installation of the industrialized
housing.

      (3)   A person commits an offense if the person:

         (a)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing in the city without first obtaining a permit as
required by this section; or

         (b)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing into the city unless such industrialized housing
complies with this section.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2002-28, passed 11-12-02; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-
32, passed 10-12-10; Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 4-19-11)



LA
RK

DR

E BOB WHITE LN

BYBEE CT
RE

AV
IS 

B

STAR ESTATES B

VU
KID

A A

VUKIDA B

STAR ESTATES A

Z21-09

117 Bybee Ct.

Location

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



LA
RK

 D
R

E BOB WHITE LN

E BEE LINE LN

BYBEE CT

RE
AV

IS 
A

AL
CO

VE

VU
KID

A A

RE
AV

IS 
B

VUKIDA B

VU
KID

A C

STAR ESTATES A

STAR ESTATES B

Z21-09

117 Bybee Ct.
Zoning Districts

B-2 Neighborhood Retail Business District
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District
B-5 General Business District
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District
R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District
R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District
R-MH Manufactured Home Park District

Zoning

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



750

121

111

115

117

124

109

116

109

119

115

107

114

111

107

108

126

123
125

117

103

112

112

113

116

117

810

115

120
105

10
4

114

120

10
8

106

118

121

110

113

122

111

118

128

110

104

804

LA
RK

 D
R

E BOB WHITE LN

E BEE LINE LN

BYBEE CT

RE
AV

IS 
A

AL
CO

VE

VU
KID

A A

RE
AV

IS 
B

VUKIDA B

VU
KID

A C

STAR ESTATES A

STAR ESTATES B

Z21-09

117 Bybee Ct.
Existing Land Use

Single-Family Residence
Manufactured Home
Commercial
Public/Semi-Public
Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



750

121

111

115

117

124

109

116

109

119

115

107

114

111

107

108

126

123
125

117

103

112

112

113

116

117

810

115

120
105

10
4

114

120

10
8

106

118

121

110

113

122

111

118

128

110

104

804

LA
RK

 D
R

E BOB WHITE LN

E BEE LINE LN

BYBEE CT

RE
AV

IS 
A

AL
CO

VE

VU
KID

A A

RE
AV

IS 
B

VUKIDA B

VU
KID

A C

STAR ESTATES A

STAR ESTATES B

Z21-09

117 Bybee Ct.
Future Land Use

Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Mobile Home Park
Commercial

Future Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



Goode/Connell
Park

YMCA Splash
Park and Pool

Harker
Heights ES

E BEE LINE LN

LA
RK

 D
R

WATSON
LN

W BOBWHITE LN

S A
MY

 LN

CLORE RD

BL
UE

BI
RD

 DR

E ROBIN LN

E BOB WHITE LN

BYBEE CT

VU
KID

A A

RE
AV

IS 
B

VUKIDA B

RE
AV

IS 
A

VU
KID

A C

AL
CO

VE

STAR ESTATES B

STAR ESTATES A

750

200

121

749111

115

813

117

124

201

109
740

116

109

119
115

807

107

114

111

107

126
202

108

723

126

901

102

102

123 125

117

103

103

112
803

112
809

113

116

747

901

700

117

810

1000

107

115

120105

104

114
120

101

726

108

801

805

106

104

118

725

121

110

113

122

726

109
111

118

806

805

128

110

102

104

804

Z21-09

117 Bybee Ct.
400 Ft. Buffer
Recommend Denial (4)
Notified Properties (37)

Notification

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet











            CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-10              AGENDA ITEM VII-4 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                         DATE: APRIL13, 2021 

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE THE 

ZONING DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO R-2 

(TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 

WILDEWOOD ACRES, BLOCK SEVEN (7), LOT NINE (9), & 10 FOOT STRIP 

ADJACENT ON NORTH, ACRES 0.17, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 917 

MAPLEWOOD DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE 

THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 

District) to R-2 (Two Family Dwelling District) on property addressed as 917 Maplewood 

Drive. The vacant property consists of approximately 7,800 square feet and the request will 

enable the applicant to construct a duplex on the property. The subject property was platted to 

its current configuration in 1972 and therefore is permitted the specified setback and area 

requirements as outlined in the R-2 zoning district. 

 

§155.023 (D) Area regulations. Lots in the Wildewood Subdivision, and duplex lots platted 

prior to November 8, 2006, shall have six-feet-minimum side setbacks, except when siding 

on a street such setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet. All other duplex lots shall have a 

minimum of ten-feet-wide side building setbacks, except when siding on a street such 

setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet. 

 

§155.023 (E) Intensity of Use (2) The minimum lot area shall be 7,800 square feet for lots 

in the Wildewood Subdivision and duplex lots platted prior to November 8, 2006. All 

other duplex lots shall contain a minimum lot area of 8,400 square feet, and an average width 

of not less than 70 feet. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Manufactured Home Medium Density Residential 
R-1 

(One Family Dwelling District) 

South Duplex Medium Density Residential 
R-2 

(Two Family Dwelling District) 

East Manufactured Home Medium Density Residential R-1 

West Duplex Medium Density Residential R-2 



Per the 2007 Comprehensive Plan the applicant’s property is in an area designated as Medium 

Density Residential (MDR). This area is designated as an acceptable replacement for aging 

manufactured housing or for new development. A survey of the area identified most of the 

properties to consist of duplexes, manufactured homes, or vacant lots. The proposed rezoning 

is consistent with the current uses in the neighborhood and the 2007 City of Harker Heights 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out forty-three (43) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. 

There were zero (0) responses received in favor of the request, and zero (0) responses received 

in opposition of the request.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of the request to change 

the zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family 

Dwelling District) on property described as Wildewood Acres, Block Seven (7), Lot Nine (9), 

& 10 foot strip adjacent on North, Acres 0.17, generally located at 917 Maplewood Drive, 

Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning are compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

Following a public hearing held on March 31, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

voted (6-3) to recommend approval on the request to change the zoning designation from R-1 

(One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on property described 

as Wildewood Acres, Block Seven (7), Lot Nine (9), & 10 foot strip adjacent on North, Acres 

0.17, generally located at 917 Maplewood Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE an Ordinance to change the zoning designation 

from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) on 

property described as Wildewood Acres, Block Seven (7), Lot Nine (9), & 10 foot strip 

adjacent on North, Acres 0.17, generally located at 917 Maplewood Drive, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

2. Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. R-2 Adopted Code 

4. Location Map 

5. Zoning Map 

6. Existing Land Use Map 

7. Future Land Use Map 

8. Notification Area Map 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

R-2 ZONING ON PROPERTY LOCATED 917 MAPLEWOOD DRIVE, HARKER 

HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One-Family 

Dwelling District) is rezoned to R-2 (Two Family Dwelling District): 

Wildewood Acres, Block Seven (7), Lot Nine (9), & 10 foot strip adjacent 

on North, Acres 0.17, generally located at 917 Maplewood Drive, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

04/13/21 Granting R-2 zoning on property 

located at 917 Maplewood Drive, 

Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on April 13, 2021 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 





Harker Heights Code of Ordinances

§ 155.023  R-2 TWO-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses.

      (1)   Any use permitted by right in the R-1 District, or (subject to the location requirements for such tracts) in the R1-I Districts.

      (2)   Two-family or duplex dwelling.

      (3)   Industrialized duplex dwelling, provided such dwelling complies with all regulations applicable to industrialized single-family
housing.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  Neighborhood association facilities.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Area regulations.  Lots in the Wildewood Subdivision, and duplex lots platted prior to November 8, 2006, shall have six-feet-
minimum side setbacks, except when siding on a street such setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet, All other duplex lots shall have a
minimum of ten-feet-wide side  building setbacks, except when siding on a street such setback shall be a minimum of 15 feet.

   (E)   Intensity of use.

      (1)   A lot on which there is erected a single-family dwelling shall conform to the same intensity of use requirements as those in
the R-1 (Single-Family Dwelling District) as noted in § 155.020(E).

      (2)   The minimum lot area shall be 7,800 square feet for lots in the Wildewood Subdivision and duplex lots platted prior to
November 8, 2006. All other duplex lots shall contain a minimum lot area of 8,400 square feet, and an average width of not less than
70 feet.

   (F)   Parking regulations.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (G)   Additional use, height, and area regulations.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (H)   Signs.  Same as in R-1 district.

   (I)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited, except for materials for the residents' use such as firewood, gardening materials, and
similar materials.

   (J)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees, measuring
two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-gallon shrubs, are
required in the front yard.

   (K)   Architectural design.  R-2 buildings shall be designed to avoid repetitions of buildings or roof lines, and the same elevation
may not be used within any five lot groupings.  Primary entrances shall face the public street. Windows shall be provided with trim or
recessed, rather than flush with exterior wall treatment.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2012-01, passed 2-14-12; Am. Ord. 2012-04, passed
3-27-12; Am. Ord. 2016-24, passed 10-11-16)



908
936

911

909

900

905

909

910
914

906

93
7

931

922

926924

916

923

923
921

915

915

921

933

927

917

905

904
906

90
2

930

934

919

923

912

913

933

919

916
920

931

927

934

929
925

917

913

918

911

928

919

920

925

921

932

912

914

917

926

908

902

929

928

906

901

904

910

903

930

925

912

900

924

931

922

932
900

933
935

930
928

905 907

916

915
913

924
922

926

ASHWOOD DR

ROSEWOOD DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

Z21-10

917 Maplewood Dr.

Location

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



908
936

911

909

900

905

909

910
914

906

93
7

931

922

926924

916

923

923
921

915

915

921

933

927

917

905

904
906

90
2

930

934

919

923

912

913

933

919

916
920

931

927

934

929
925

917

913

918

911

928

919

920

925

921

932

912

914

917

926

908

902

929

928

906

901

904

910

903

930

925

912

900

924

931

922

932
900

933
935

930
928

905 907

916

915
913

924
922

926

ASHWOOD DR

ROSEWOOD DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

Z21-10

917 Maplewood Dr.
Zoning Districts

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District
R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District
R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



908
936

911

909

900

905

909

910
914

906

93
7

931

922

926924

916

923

923
921

915

915

921

933

927

917

905

904
906

90
2

930

934

919

923

912

913

933

919

916
920

931

927

934

929
925

917

913

918

911

928

919

920

925

921

932

912

914

917

926

908

902

929

928

906

901

904

910

903

930

925

912

900

924

931

922

932
900

933
935

930
928

905 907

916

915
913

924
922

926

ASHWOOD DR

ROSEWOOD DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

Z21-10

917 Maplewood Dr.
Existing Land Use

Single-Family Residence
Duplex
Manufactured Home
Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



908
936

911

909

900

905

909

910
914

906

93
7

931

922

926924

916

923

923
921

915

915

921

933

927

917

905

904
906

90
2

930

934

919

923

912

913

933

919

916
920

931

927

934

929
925

917

913

918

911

928

919

920

925

921

932

912

914

917

926

908

902

929

928

906

901

904

910

903

930

925

912

900

924

931

922

932
900

933
935

930
928

905 907

916

915
913

924
922

926

ASHWOOD DR

ROSEWOOD DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

Z21-10

917 Maplewood Dr.
Future Land Use

Medium Density Residential

Future Land Use

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet



905
907

915

908

919

936

918
916

911

909

904

900

905

911

909

901

910
914

901

908

906

921

2310

2208

2300

937

931

934

922 924

922

913

938

2302

923

920

926924

916

941

916

923

941

923
921

934

915

915

937

921

933

927

932

931

939

2304

904

917

609

905

935

940

910906

904

2206

940

912

906
902

2115

2117

930
934

919

939

923

912

913

936

933

938

933

919

937916

923

10
01

940

940
930

920

931

938

940

927

914

927

934

929

929

930

941

925

917

937

941

929

913

925

910

928
919

918

911

928

915

933

935

919

920

925

935

921

932

936925

900

912

914

901

23
12

931

917

926

900

908

914

902

906

902

929

928

2205

906

2308

901

903

2205

904

908

910

903

930

925

938

932

917

912

900

924

931

922

912

926

927

932

902

90
0

934

933 935

930
928

905 907

916

915913
924922

926

Harker
Heights HS

VE
RN

A L
EE

BL
VD

WI
LD

EW
OO

D D
R

ADDAX TRL

PINEWOOD DR

LEMONWOOD DR

ASHWOOD DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

ROSEWOOD DR

Z21-10

917 Maplewood Dr.
400 Ft. Buffer
Notified Properties (43)

Notification

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 
AGENDA ITEM #VII-5  

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                          DATE: APRIL 13, 2021 
 
CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AMENDING SECTRION 
§ 125.02 (B) OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD 
DEFINITIONS WHICH WILL STANDARDIZE ENFORCEMENT WITHIN CHAPTER 
125 OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE OF ORDINANCES AND TAKE THE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION.  
 
EXPLANATION: 
While enforcing Chapter 125: Establishments Not Licensed by The Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Commission (TABC) of the Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, the city staff and City Attorney 
identified two definitions and one revision to an existing definition that are necessary in order to 
provide for enforcement.  
 
ANALYSIS 
As proposed, the ordinance amendment would clarify the definitions of a BYOB Venue or Event, 
a Public Place, and a Restaurant. The addition of these definitions solidifies what type of business 
is being operated and provides for uniform enforcement of the ordinance.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of an amendment to § 125.02 (B) of the Harker Heights Code of 
Ordinances to add definitions which will standardize enforcement within Chapter 125 of the 
Harker Heights Code of Ordinances. 
 
ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove an amendment to § 125.02 (B) of the Harker Heights 
Code of Ordinances to add definitions which will standardize enforcement within 
Chapter 125 of the Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, based upon staff’s 
recommendation and findings. 

2. Any other action desired. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Amending Ordinance 
2. Current Ordinance with Annotated Changes 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO.______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AMENDING § 
125.02 (B) OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD 
DEFINITIONS WHICH WILL STANDARDIZE ENFORCEMENT WITHIN 
CHAPTER 125 OF THE HARKER HEIGHTS CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds that it 
is necessary and desirable to amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter 
provided in order to add definitions within § 125.02 (B); and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and notice 
of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in strict 
accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The City Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 
forth in the preamble to this ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: Section 125.02 (B) of the Code of Harker Heights is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

(B) In this chapter: 

      … 

 BYOB VENUE OR EVENT. An establishment to which this chapter applies, as 
prescribed by § 125.03.  

 … 

PUBLIC PLACE. Any place accessible by the public, a business or public facility, 
a way or place, of whatever nature, opened to the use of the public as a matter of 
right, or for purposes of vehicular travel a street, or in the case of a sidewalk thereof, 
for pedestrian travel. 

 RESTAURANT. An establishment engaged in the preparation and retail sale of 
food, and beverages for on-premise consumption or in a ready-to-consume state. To 
qualify as a restaurant under this Chapter, the establishment must produce at least 
80% of its total revenue, exclusive of tips and gratuities, from the provision of food 
service.  

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: All of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be 
governmental and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the 
City Council or any city official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, 
acting for the City of Harker Heights in the discharge of official duties, shall not thereby become 



 2 

personally liable, and is hereby relieved from all personal liability for any damage that might 
accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of said 
duties. 

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City Clerk 
shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on Tuesday, 
February 24, 2021. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Juliette Helsham, City Secretary 
 



CHAPTER 125:  ESTABLISHMENTS NOT LICENSED BY THE TEXAS ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 
COMMISSION 
Section 
General Provisions 
   125.01   Short title and purpose 
   125.02   Definitions 
   125.03   Applicability 
   125.04   Notice 
   125.05   Administrative rules 
Permits 
   125.15   Permit required 
   125.16   Qualifications 
   125.17   Permit application 
   125.18   Permit approval or denial 
   125.19   Permit not transferable 
   125.20   Permit not a right 
   125.21   Permit expiration; renewal 
   125.22   Requirement to supplement information 
   125.23   Permit suspension 
   125.24   Permit revocation 
   125.25   Appeal 
Regulations for Operation of a BYOB Establishment 
   125.35   Public place 
   125.36   Permit posting required 
   125.37   Manager required on premises 
   125.38   Security plan implementation 
   125.39   Minimum age for admittance and alcohol consumption 
   125.40   Doors to remain unlocked 
   125.41   Consent to inspection; immediate access required 
   125.42   Hours of operation 
   125.43   Alcoholic beverage consumption areas 
   125.44   Parking area restrictions 
   125.45   Sale of alcoholic beverages prohibited 
   125.46   Restriction on consumption and purchase of alcohol by permit holder and 
employees 
   125.47   Insurance requirement 
   125.48   Compliance with other laws 
   125.49   Crime prevention and reporting 
Enforcement 
   125.60   Criminal penalty 
   125.61   Civil remedies 



   125.62   Cumulative remedies 
   125.63   Authority of City Attorney 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
§ 125.01  SHORT TITLE AND PURPOSE. 
   (A)   This chapter may be known and cited as "BYOB Businesses Regulation." 
   (B)   The purpose of this chapter is to protect the welfare of the citizens of the City of 
Harker Heights by monitoring and regulating BYOB businesses. To this end, this chapter 
establishes a permit program for BYOB businesses, imposes regulations of business 
operations of BYOB businesses, and imposes civil and criminal penalties for violations of 
this chapter by BYOB businesses. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.02  DEFINITIONS. 
   (A)   It is a common practice for an establishment not licensed or permitted by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission to sell or serve alcoholic beverages to allow its patrons to 
bring their own alcoholic beverages onto the premises for consumption. This practice is 
often referred to as "BYOB," an acronym for "bring your own bottle." 
   (B)   In this chapter: 
      ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE. Has the meaning assigned by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Code. 
      BYOB PERMIT. A permit, issued pursuant to this chapter, to operate a BYOB venue. 
      BYOB VENUE OR EVENT. An establishment to which this chapter applies, as prescribed 
by § 125.03. 
      DEPARTMENT. The Planning and Development Department of the City of Harker 
Heights. 
      DIRECTOR. The Director of the Planning and Development Department. 
      PREMISES. The grounds and all buildings, vehicles, and appurtenances pertaining to the 
grounds, including any adjacent premises if they are directly or indirectly under the control 
of the same person. 

PUBLIC PLACE. Any place accessible by the public, a business or public facility, a way 
or place, of whatever nature, opened to the use of the public as a matter of right, or for 
purposes of vehicular travel a street, or in the case of a sidewalk thereof, for pedestrian 
travel. 

RESTAURANT. An establishment engaged in the preparation and retail sale of food, and 
beverages for on-premise consumption or in a ready-to-consume state. To qualify as a 
restaurant under this Chapter, the establishment must produce at least 80% of its total 
revenue, exclusive of tips and gratuities, from the provision of food service.  

(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 



§ 125.03  APPLICABILITY. 
   (A)   Except as provided in division (B), this chapter applies to an establishment that: 
      (1)   Is not licensed or permitted by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission to sell or 
serve alcoholic beverages; and 
      (2)   Allows patrons to bring alcoholic beverages onto the premises for possession and 
consumption. 
   (B)   This chapter docs not apply to: 
      (1)   A residence; 
      (2)   An establishment operated by a governmental entity; 
      (3)   A private club, as defined by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code; 
      (4)   A fraternal or veteran's organization, as defined by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Code; 
      (5)   A college and university use; 
      (6)   A religious assembly use; 
      (7)   A restaurant; or 
      (8)   A theater use. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.04  NOTICE. 
   (A)   Mailed notice is presumed received on the fifth day after it is mailed. 
   (B)   Notice to a permit holder may be delivered to the manager at the BYOB venue and is 
effective on delivery. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.05  ADMINISTRATIVE RULES. 
   The Director shall adopt administrative rules to implement, administer, and enforce this 
chapter. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
PERMITS 
 
§ 125.15  PERMIT REQUIRED. 
   (A)   A person shall obtain a BYOB permit issued by the Department before the person 
may operate a BYOB venue. 
   (B)   A person must obtain a separate BYOB permit for each BYOB venue location. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.16  QUALIFICATIONS. 
   (A)   A person may not apply for or hold a permit under this chapter unless the person is 
at least 18 years of age. 



   (B)   A person may not hold a BYOB permit under this chapter or manage a BYOB venue if 
the person has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor that directly relates to the duties 
and responsibilities for operating a BYOB venue, and the conviction makes the person unfit 
to hold a permit or manage a BYOB venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.17  PERMIT APPLICATION. 
   (A)   A person who seeks a permit to operate a BYOB venue must submit an application to 
the Director on a form provided by the Director. The application must include: 
      (1)   The names, addresses, and birth dates of all persons who have an ownership 
interest in, or who will manage, the proposed BYOB venue; 
      (2)   Authorization for the city to conduct a criminal background check on each person 
described in division (A)(1); 
      (3)   The name of the BYOB venue and its physical address; 
      (4)   A registration certificate for the establishment from the Secretary of State, if 
registration is required by law; 
      (5)   Proof that the applicant has all other permits and approvals required to operate the 
establishment, including appropriate zoning; 
      (6)   A security plan that meets or exceeds the minimum standards established by 
administrative rule, as determined by the Police Chief; 
      (7)   Scale drawings of the site, including: 
         (a)   All site improvements; 
         (b)   The floor plan of each building; and 
         (c)   A designation of the areas where the consumption of alcohol is to be allowed; 
      (8)   Information required by administrative rule; 
      (9)   Proof that the applicant has a commercial general liability insurance policy 
providing minimum premises/operations coverage of $500,000 per occurrence and 
$1,000,000 in the aggregate on an occurrence basis; and 
      (10)   Other information reasonably required by the Director. 
   (B)   An applicant shall pay the non-refundable permit fee established by ordinance. 
   (C)   A BYOB permit is void if the applicant obtains the BYOB permit by knowingly 
providing false information on the application. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.18  PERMIT APPROVAL OR DENIAL. 
   (A)   The Director shall approve a BYOB permit application if the Director determines that 
the applicant and the proposed BYOB venue meet the requirements of § 125.16 
(Qualifications) and § 125.17 (Permit Application), and are not disqualified by divisions (B) 
and (C) of this section. 
   (B)   The Director shall deny a BYOB permit application if the Director determines that: 
      (1)   The applicant is under the age of 18 years; 
      (2)   The BYOB venue as proposed would not comply with this chapter; or 



      (3)   The applicant had a BYOB permit required by this chapter revoked within the 
preceding l2-month period. 
   (C)   The Director may deny a BYOB permit application if the Director determines if that: 
      (1)   The applicant provided incorrect or incomplete information on the application; or 
      (2)   The person has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor that directly relates to 
the duties and responsibilities for operating a BYOB venue, and the conviction makes the 
person unfit to hold a permit. 
   (D)   If the Director does not approve or deny an application within 45 days of the date it 
is filed, the application is denied. 
   (E)   The Director shall give written notice of a denial of an application to the applicant. 
   (F)   An applicant may appeal to the Board of Adjustment a denial of a BYOB permit 
application in accordance with § 125.25 (Appeal). 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20; Am. Ord. 2020-13, passed 4-28-20) 
 
§ 125.19  PERMIT NOT TRANSFERABLE. 
   A BYOB permit issued under this chapter is not transferable to another person or venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.20  PERMIT NOT A RIGHT. 
   A BYOB permit issued under this chapter is a grant of a privilege and is not a property 
right. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.21  PERMIT EXPIRATION; RENEWAL. 
   A BYOB permit issued under this chapter expires one year after the date it is issued. A 
BYOB permit holder shall file an application for BYOB permit renewal not sooner than the 
ninetieth day and not later than the forty-fifth day before the BYOB permit expires. An 
application that is not filed within the described time period is a new application. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.22  REQUIREMENT TO SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION. 
   While a BYOB permit application is pending or a BYOB permit is in effect, an applicant or 
permit holder shall immediately supplement the information provided to the Director in 
the BYOB permit application if the information is or becomes inaccurate, incomplete, or 
misleading. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.23  PERMIT SUSPENSION. 
   (A)   The Director may suspend a BYOB permit issued under this chapter without prior 
notice or healing if the Director determines that: 
      (1)   The BYOB permit holder, the manager, or an employee of the BYOB venue has 
violated a requirement of this chapter; 



      (2)   The BYOB venue does not comply with this chapter; or 
      (3)   The BYOB permit holder does not qualify for a permit under this chapter. 
   (B)   If the Director suspends a BYOB permit: 
      (1)   The Director shall give written notice to the BYOB permit holder that: 
         (a)   The BYOB permit is immediately suspended on receipt of the notice; and 
         (b)   The BYOB permit holder may file a written request for a hearing not later than the 
tenth day after the date of receipt of notice of suspension; and 
      (2)   The BYOB permit holder shall immediately close the BYOB venue. 
      (3)   Any BYOB permit which has been suspended under this chapter shall be 
surrendered upon demand to the Director. At the end of the period of suspension, in the 
absence of further violations, the surrendered BYOB permit shall be returned to the BYOB 
permit holder and shall be valid under the provisions of this code. If the period of 
suspension extends beyond the normal expiration date of the BYOB permit, the BYOB 
permit holder shall pay all BYOB permit fees without proration in order to receive a valid 
BYOB permit. 
   (C)   Suspension of a BYOB permit is effective on receipt of notice. 
   (D)   A BYOB permit holder may file with the Director a written request for a hearing on a 
BYOB permit suspension. The request must be filed not later than the tenth day after the 
date of receipt of notice of suspension. 
   (E)   If a BYOB permit holder timely files a hearing request: 
      (1)   The Director shall hold a hearing on the permit suspension not later than the 
fourteenth day after the date the hearing request is filed. At such hearing, the BYOB permit 
holder may present information to the Director addressing the Director's suspension of a 
BYOB permit and reasons, if any, that the BYOB permit holder believes the suspension is 
not warranted; and 
      (2)   A suspension is stayed pending the outcome of the hearing. 
   (F)   If a hearing request is not timely filed, a suspension continues in effect. 
   (G)   After hearing, the Director shall give written notice to the BYOB permit holder as to 
whether suspension is continued in effect after a hearing under division (E). 
   (H)   The Director may reinstate a permit if the reason for suspension no longer exists. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.24  PERMIT REVOCATION. 
   (A)   The Director may revoke a BYOB permit issued under this chapter if the Director 
determines that: 
      (1)   The permit holder, the manager, or an employee of the BYOB venue has engaged in 
serious or repeated violations of this chapter; 
      (2)   The BYOB venue does not comply with this chapter; or 
      (3)   The permit holder does not qualify for a permit under this chapter. 
   (B)   Before revoking a BYOB permit, the Director shall provide the BYOB permit holder 
with written notice of the pending permit revocation. The written notice shall include: 
      (1)   The reason the BYOB permit is subject to revocation; 



      (2)   The date on which the BYOB permit is scheduled to be revoked; and 
      (3)   A statement that the BYOB permit will be revoked on the scheduled date unless the 
BYOB permit holder files a written request for a hearing with the Director not later than 
the tenth day after the date the notice is received. 
   (C)   A BYOB permit revocation becomes effective on expiration of the time period 
prescribed by the notice if the BYOB permit holder does not file a written request for 
hearing with the Director not later than the tenth day after the notice is received. 
   (D)   If a BYOB permit holder timely files a hearing request: 
      (1)   The Director shall hold a hearing on the BYOB permit revocation not later than the 
fourteenth day after the date the hearing request is filed. At such hearing, the BYOB permit 
holder may present information to the Director addressing the Director's intent to revoke 
the BYOB permit and reasons, if any, that the BYOB permit holder believes the revocation is 
not warranted; and 
      (2)   A revocation is stayed pending the outcome of the hearing. 
   (E)   The Director shall give written notice to the BYOB permit holder of a decision 
regarding the revocation of the BYOB permit or a revocation that becomes effective under 
division (C). 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.25  APPEAL. 
   (A)   An applicant or a permit holder may appeal to the Board of Adjustment a permit 
application denial, a permit suspension, or a permit revocation. To stay a suspension or 
revocation under this chapter, appeal to the Board of Adjustment must be made within ten 
days after the applicant/BYOB permit holder receives written notice of the decision that it 
is appealing. 
   (B)   If the permit holder timely files a notice of appeal pursuant to division (A), a 
suspension, or revocation is stayed. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
REGULATIONS FOR OPERATION OF A BYOB ESTABLISHMENT 
 
§ 125.35  PUBLIC PLACE. 
   A BYOB venue is a public place. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.36  PERMIT POSTING REQUIRED. 
   A BYOB permit holder shall post the BYOB permit required by this chapter in a prominent 
public location at the BYOB venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.37  MANAGER REQUIRED ON PREMISES. 



   A BYOB permit holder shall ensure that a qualified manager is continuously on the BYOB 
venue premises during the hours of operation. A BYOB permit holder may serve as the 
manager. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.38  SECURITY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION. 
   (A)   A person may not operate a BYOB venue without an approved security plan. 
   (B)   A BYOB permit holder and a BYOB venue manager shall provide security for the 
BYOB venue in accordance with the security plan. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.39  MINIMUM AGE FOR ADMITTANCE AND ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION. 
   (A)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue may not allow a 
person under the age of 18 years on the premises. 
   (B)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue may not allow a 
person under the age of 21 years to consume alcohol on the premises. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.40  DOORS TO REMAIN UNLOCKED. 
   During the hours of operation, a person may not lock or obstruct: 
   (A)   An exterior entrance door that is designated or available for use by patrons; or 
   (B)   An interior door that provides access to a portion of the premises that is designated 
or available for use by patrons. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.41  CONSENT TO INSPECTION; IMMEDIATE ACCESS REQUIRED. 
   (A)   By accepting a BYOB permit under this chapter, the permit holder consents that the 
Director, the Director's representative, law enforcement personnel, code enforcement 
personnel, and other on-duty governmental personnel may enter the premises during the 
hours of operation to conduct an investigation or inspect the premises to determine 
compliance with this chapter. 
   (B)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, and an employee of a BYOB venue shall provide 
the Director, the Director's representative, law enforcement personnel, code enforcement 
personnel, and other on-duty governmental personnel with immediate access to all 
portions of the premises. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.42  HOURS OF OPERATION. 
   (A)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue shall close a 
BYOB venue between 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. each day except Sunday, and between 2:00 
a.m. and noon on Sunday. A patron who is on the premises at 2:00 a.m. may remain until 
not later than 2:15 a.m. 



   (B)   A person may not consume an alcoholic beverage on the premises of a BYOB venue 
between 2:15 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. each day except Sunday, or between 2:15 a.m. and noon on 
Sunday. 
   (C)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue may not allow a 
member of the public on its premises, including a parking area, between 2:30 a.m. and 7:00 
a.m. each day except Sunday, or between 2:30 a.m. and noon on Sunday. This prohibition 
does not apply to a person who is providing a product or service directly to the BYOB 
venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.43  ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONSUMPTION AREAS. 
   (A)   A permit holder shall designate, subject to the approval of the Director, the portions 
of the premises on which the consumption of alcoholic beverages is permitted. A 
designated area: 
      (1)   Must be located and designed to minimize adverse effects on adjacent property; 
      (2)   May include the interior of a building or a deck, patio, or garden; and 
      (3)   Must exclude parking areas. 
   (B)   A person may not consume, and a permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a 
BYOB venue may not allow the consumption of an alcoholic beverage outside of a 
designated area. 
   (C)   The BYOB permit holder shall indicate the portions of the premises on which the 
consumption of alcoholic beverages is permitted on the floor plan provided with the BYOB 
permit application. If the BYOB permit holder desires to change or modify the area where 
alcoholic beverages may be consumed, it must first provide a revised floor plan to the 
Director. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.44  PARKING AREA RESTRICTIONS. 
   (A)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue may not allow 
persons to congregate in a parking area. 
   (B)   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or an employee of a BYOB venue may not allow a 
person to consume an alcoholic beverage in a parking area. 
   (C)   A BYOB permit holder shall post signs in each parking area stating that the 
consumption of an alcoholic beverage is prohibited. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.45  SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES PROHIBITED. 
   A person may not sell an alcoholic beverage at a BYOB venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.46  RESTRICTION ON CONSUMPTION AND PURCHASE OF ALCOHOL BY PERMIT 
HOLDER AND EMPLOYEES. 



   A BYOB permit holder, manager, or employee of a BYOB venue may not: 
   (A)   Consume an alcoholic beverage while on duty; 
   (B)   Purchase or otherwise acquire an alcoholic beverage for a patron; or 
   (C)   Give an alcoholic beverage to a patron. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.47  INSURANCE REQUIREMENT. 
   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, or owner shall maintain a commercial general liability 
insurance policy providing minimum premises/operations coverage of $500,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate on an occurrence basis. The policy must be 
provided by an insurer licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance, and must be 
endorsed to name as additional insured, the city. Prior to opening for business, the BYOB 
permit holder, manager, or owner shall deliver a certificate of insurance and copies of all 
endorsements for additional insured to the Director, and thereafter at least ten days prior 
to the expiration of such policies. The permit holder, manager, or owner shall prominently 
display a sign at the facility stating that the owner or operator has purchased liability 
insurance to cover activities at the facility. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20; Am. Ord. 2020-17, passed 5-12-20) 
 
§ 125.48  COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS. 
   A BYOB permit holder, a manager, and an employee of a BYOB venue shall comply with 
the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code and all applicable criminal, zoning, health, and safety 
laws relating to the operation of the BYOB venue. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.49  CRIME PREVENTION AND REPORTING. 
   The BYOB permit holder, the manager, and the employees of a BYOB venue shall: 
   (A)   Take reasonable measures to prevent criminal activity on the premises; and 
   (B)   Immediately report to law enforcement personnel all suspected criminal activity on 
the premises or the surrounding areas that they observe or of which they otherwise 
become aware. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
§ 125.60  CRIMINAL PENALTY. 
   (A)   A person commits a Class C misdemeanor if the person: 
      (1)   Operates a BYOB venue without a permit required by this chapter; or 
      (2)   Violates a provision of this chapter, other than § 125.45 (Sale of Alcoholic 
Beverages Prohibited) or § 125.48 (Compliance with Other Laws). 
   (B)   Proof of a culpable mental state is not required to prove an offense under this 
chapter, except for § 125.42(B) (Hours of Operation). 



   (C)   Each day that a violation occurs or continues is a separate offense. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.61  CIVIL REMEDIES. 
   (A)   The City Council has determined that this chapter is necessary to protect health, life, 
and property and to preserve the good government, order, and security of the city and its 
inhabitants. 
   (B)   A person who continues to violate this chapter after being notified of the offense in 
writing by an authorized city representative is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed 
$1,000 for each day or part of a day the violation occurs. 
   (C)   The city may file suit to enforce this chapter to collect a civil penalty. 
   (D)   The city may seek to enjoin violations of this chapter. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.62  CUMULATIVE REMEDIES. 
   The remedies authorized under this subchapter are cumulative. If the city files a civil or 
criminal action, it is not precluded from pursuing any other action or remedy. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 
 
§ 125.63  AUTHORITY OF CITY ATTORNEY. 
   The City Attorney may, without further authorization of the City Council, undertake the 
enforcement of this chapter by all legal means appropriate or necessary, including but not 
limited to: enforcement in municipal court, filing of appropriate criminal or civil actions in 
courts of appropriate jurisdiction, and to defend the city from suit if suit is taken to appeal 
any action of the city. 
(Ord. 2020-10, passed 4-14-20) 



CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

    

P21-13           AGENDA ITEM # IX-1 
FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                  DATE:    APRIL 13, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT 

APPROVAL FOR THE SUBDIVISION REFERRED TO AS ABOOHA TOKLO PHASE 

THREE, ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS A 13.740 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN BELL 

COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THE H.B. LITTLEFIELD SURVEY, ABSTRACT 

NO. 511, THE LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED BEING ALL OF LOT EIGHT (8), BLOCK 

ONE (1), AMENDED PLAT OF MARLEY ADDITION, AN ADDITION TO THE CITY 

OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, BEING OF RECORD IN CABINET C, SLIDE 123-A, 

ALSO BEING THE REMAINDER OF LOT THREE (3), BLOCK ONE (1), ABOOHA 

TOKLO ADDITION, PHASE ONE, GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF KILLEEN 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT MIDDLE SCHOOL #14 (NOLAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL), ON PROPERTIES BETWEEN PUEBLO AND WARRIORS PATH, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 

ACTION. 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant has submitted an application for preliminary plat approval for approximately 13.74 

acres of vacant land between Pueblo Trace and Warriors Path. This is the second phase of a 

combined development as outlined in Abooha Toklo Addition Concept Plan and Abooha Toklo 

Addition Section Two Concept Plan. The preliminary plat identifies two (2) blocks and a total of 

forty-seven (47) residential lots. The subject properties are all currently zoned as R-2 (Two 

Family Dwelling District) and are proposed to be developed in accordance with the existing 

zoning classification. The preliminary infrastructure includes water and wastewater lines, 

sidewalks, and the extension of Tejas Trail from Pueblo Trace to Warriors Path.  

 

Staff has reviewed the submitted preliminary plat and engineering plans and has made comments 

to address safety, drainage, water and wastewater utilities and other pertinent requirements to 

ensure that all developmental regulations stipulated in the City of Harker Heights Code of 

Ordinances will be adhered to.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

As of March 22, 2021, some of staff’s comments were outstanding. The majority of staff’s 

concerns can be addressed during the construction plan and final plat process. Staff therefore 

recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat referred to as Abooha Toklo Phase Three, on 

property described as a 13.740 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the H.B. 

Littlefield Survey, Abstract No. 511, the land herein described being all of Lot eight (8), Block 

one (1), Amended plat of Marley Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 123-A, also being the remainder of Lot three (3), Block one 

(1), Abooha Toklo Addition, Phase One, generally located south of KISD Middle School #14, 



AKA Nolan Middle School, on properties between Pueblo and Warriors Path, Harker Heights, 

Bell County, Texas with the following conditions: Per Section 154.21(D)(4) of the City’s Code 

of Ordinances, the following shall be addressed prior to approval of the final plat: 

a. Provide for the required minor arterial right-of-way width along Warrior’s Path 

(Lot 24, Block 1 shall be in line with Lot 23, Block 2).   

b. Place a note on the plat dedication page indicating that no access will be granted 

onto Warrior’s Path from the following lots: Lot 24, Block 2 and Lot 23, Block 2. 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

On March 31, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted (7-2) to recommend conditional 

approval of the request for a Preliminary Plat referred to as Abooha Toklo Phase Three, on 

property described as a 13.740 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the H.B. 

Littlefield Survey, Abstract No. 511, the land herein described being all of Lot eight (8), Block 

one (1), Amended plat of Marley Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 123-A, also being the remainder of Lot three (3), Block one 

(1), Abooha Toklo Addition, Phase One, generally located south of Killeen Independent School 

District Middle School #14 (Nolan Middle School), on properties between Pueblo and Warriors 

Path, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas with the following conditions: Per Section 154.21(D) 

(4) of the City of Harker Heights’ Code of Ordinances, the following shall be addressed prior to 

approval of the final plat: 

a. Provide for the required minor arterial right-of-way width along Warrior’s Path 

(Lot 24, Block 1 shall be in line with Lot 23, Block 2).   

b. Place a note on the plat dedication page indicating that no access will be granted 

onto Warrior’s Path from the following lots: Lot 24, Block 2 and Lot 23, Block 2. 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to Approve, Approve with conditions, or Disapprove with explanation a request 

for Preliminary Plat approval for subdivision referred to as Abooha Toklo Phase Three, on 

property described as a 13.740 acre tract of land in Bell County, Texas, being part of the H.B. 

Littlefield Survey, Abstract No. 511, the land herein described being all of Lot eight (8), 

Block one (1), Amended plat of Marley Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, 

Texas, being of record in Cabinet C, Slide 123-A, also being the remainder of Lot three (3), 

Block one (1), Abooha Toklo Addition, Phase One, generally located south of Killeen 

Independent School District Middle School #1 (Nolan Middle School), on properties between 

Pueblo and Warriors Path, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

2. Any other action desired. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application 

2. Location Map 

3. Abooha Toklo Addition Concept Plan (Approved on July 14, 2020) 

4. Abooha Toklo Addition Section Two Concept Plan (Approved on December 8, 2020) 

5. Preliminary Plat with Preliminary Engineering Plan Sheets 

6. Staff Comments with Responses (March 16, 2021) 









James Michael Jr. &
Lucia L. Lomardo

(Instrument No. 2014-7771)

Killeen ISD Middle School 14
(Plat Year 2019, No. 88)

1
Block A

D. Robinson Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 198-C)

4
Block 1

3 2 1

4
Block 1

3

2

56

Stephenson

Subdivision

(Cab. C, Slide 99-B)

Stonehill Subdivision
Phase 1

(Cab. D, Slide 66-D)
Stonehill Subdivision

Phase 2
(Cab. D, Slide 101-D)

Pontotoc Duplexes
Filing #1

(Plat Year 2015, 35)

8
Block 1

7
Block 1

Eliazar etux
Maria Mercedes

Mendoza
(Instrument No.

2018-30355)

11
Block 2

11
Block 1

Antelope Run
(Cab. C, Slide 328-C)

Elesa Burks &
Marion J. Midgett
Called 0.41 Acre
(Vol. 4200, Page 225)

Ownership:
Killeen Independent School District

(Instrument No. 2019-19934)

Ownership:
Scott Royal

Trustee
(Instrument

No.
2018-35960)

Elesa Burks & Marion
J. Midgett
(Vol. 4200, Page 225)

10

9

6

Dr
ai

na
ge

 Es
m

t.
(P

la
t Y

ea
r 2

01
9, 

No
. 8

8)

60' 60'

60'

60'

(Im
pr

ov
ed

 25
.0'

 R
oa

d)

25.0' B.L. 25.0' B.L.

20.0' B.L. 20.0' B.L.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10.0' B.L.

15
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

20.0' Permanent Utility & Access Esmt.
(Instrument No. 2018-48250)

5.0' Esmt & Right of Way
(Vol. 3590, Page 640)

Utility Esmt.
(Instrument No. 2019-4702)

15
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

10
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

20.0' B.L. 20.0' B.L.

25.0' B.L.
25.0' B.L.

25
.0

' B
.L

.

20.0' B.L.

15
.0

' B
.L

.

20
.0

' B
.L

.
10

.0
' B

.L
.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

Existing fire
hydrant

Existing 6"
water

Existing 6"
water

Existing 6"
water

Existing 6"
water

Existing 6"
sewer

Existing
manhole

Existing
manhole

Existing
manhole

Existing
manhole

Existing 6"
sewer

Existing 6"
sewer

Existing 6"
water

Existing
10" sewer

Existing
6" sewer

Existing Land Use
Single Family

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Existing Land Use
Double Wide Trailer

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Existing Land Use
School

20
.0

' D
.E

.

25.0' B.L. 25.0' B.L.

10
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

15
.0

' B
.L

. 10
.0

' B
.L

.

0.
26

2 
A

c.
11

,4
32

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
26

3 
A

c.
11

,4
47

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
27

2 
A

c.
11

,8
38

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
29

0 
A

c.
12

,6
16

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
30

1 
A

c.
13

,1
30

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
23

3 
A

c.
10

,1
33

 S
q.

 F
t.

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Tr

ac
t

0.
16

3 
A

c.
7,

11
3 

Sq
. F

t.

7

Existing Land Use
Single Family

Existing Land Use
Multi Family

Existing Land Use
Multi Family

Existing Land Use
Multi Family

Existing Land Use
Double Wide Trailer

Existing Land Use
Double Wide

Trailer

Existing Land Use
DuplexExisting Land Use

Single Wide Trailer

Existing Land Use
Single Family

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Existing Land Use
Duplex

Future Land Use
Medium Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Future Land Use
High Density Residential

Future Land Use
High Density
Residential

Future Land Use
High Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Future Land Use
Mixed Residential

Future Land Use
Mixed Residential

Future Land Use
Mixed Residential

Future Land Use
Mixed Residential

Future Land Use
Mixed ResidentialFuture Land Use

Mixed Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Future Land Use
Medium Density Residential

5' Sidewalk

5' Sidewalk

5'
 S

id
ew

al
k

5'
 S

id
ew

al
k

0.
26

6 
A

c.
11

,5
79

 S
q.

 F
t.

10
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

10
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E. 10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E.

Existing fire
hydrant

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3  

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
4 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
4 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
4 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
4 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
21

0 
A

c.
9,

16
5 

Sq
. F

t.

(Improved 21.0' Road)

25.0' B.L.
25.0' B.L.

25.0' B.L.25.0' B.L.

20.0' B.L.

20.0' B.L.

20.0' B.L.

20.0' B.L.
10

.0
' B

.L
.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

10
.0

' B
.L

.

5' Sidewalk 5' Sidewalk

5' Sidewalk
5' Sidewalk

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential Existing Land Use
Single Family

Existing Land Use
Single Family

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Future Land Use
Single Family Residential

Existing Land Use
Vacant

Future Land Use
High Density Residential

Future Land Use
Medium Density

Residential

Ownership:
Stephan etux

Dominique
Dixon

(Instrument
No.

2018-44012)

Ownership:
Austin Tyler

Lee &
Jaqueline

J. Long
(Instrument

No.
2016-33813)

Ownership:
Raymond

Jones
(Instrument

No.
2019-33964)

James Allen
Ferguson

(Vol. 4025,
Page 237)

Delores Faulkner
(Instrument No.

2013-49951)

I.D.C. Addition
(Cab. C,

Slide 147-D)

1
Block 1

Ownership:
James J. Jacobs Sr.

(Vol. 5578, Page 510)

Joseph L. Daigle
(Instrument No.

2007-41031)

7A
Block 1

Ownership:
Enrique V.
Gonzalez

(Instrument No.
2019-44080))

6A

Ownership:
Dean S. Kozel

(Vol. 3748,
Page 100)

5A 4A 3A 2A 1A

Ownership:
Shondrick Hill
(Vol. 6017,
Page 110)

Ownership:
Sajid Kakana

(Instrument No.
2019-56445)

Ownership:
Jaybriel

Keola Akoi
(Instrument No.

2013-43608)

Ownership:
Patrick etux
Bobbie J.
Mendoza

(Instrument No.
2013-30878)

Ownership:
Juan etux Janice

M. Vazquez
Amended Plat of

Marley Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 123-A)

Jordanna D. Packwood
(Vol. 4132, Page 628)

Christine E. Sutton
(Vol. 1112, Page 794)

City of Harker Heights Limits

C
ity

 o
f H

ar
ke

r H
ei

gh
ts

 L
im

its

10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E. 10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E.

10.0' P.U.E.

0.
22

6 
A

c.
9,

84
1  

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

60
6  

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

4 
A

c.
8,

46
8 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

3 
A

c.
8,

40
0  

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

5 
A

c.
8,

50
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

6 
A

c.
8,

51
8 

Sq
. F

t.
0.

29
0 

A
c.

12
,6

35
 S

q.
 F

t.

0.
45

3 
A

c.
19

,7
51

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
25

2 
A

c.
10

,9
59

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
19

6 
A

c.
8,

55
0 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

6 
A

c.
8,

53
9 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

7 
A

c.
8,

57
0 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

3 
A

c.
8,

42
0 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
20

5 
A

c.
8,

94
7 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
23

3 
A

c.
10

,1
50

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
23

1 
A

c.
10

,0
81

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
19

7 
A

c.
8,

58
7 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
3 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
19

8 
A

c.
8,

62
2 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
20

2 
A

c.
8,

81
4 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
24

3 
A

c.
10

,6
04

 S
q.

 F
t.

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Tr

ac
t

0.
69

0 
A

c.
30

,0
35

 S
q.

 F
t.

0.
20

7 
A

c.
9,

02
8 

Sq
. F

t.

0.
21

2 
A

c.
9,

21
5 

Sq
. F

t.

Existing Land Use
Multi Family

Future Land Use
High Density Residential

20
.0

' B
.L

.

20.0' B.L.

Existing 6"
water

Future Land Use
High Density Residential

15
.0

' P
.U

.E
.

NATCHEZ

HOPI

TEJAS

MOHICAN

TRAIL

TRAIL

TRAIL

INDIAN TRAIL

PU
EB

LO
  T

RA
IL

PIMA

YUMA

TRL

TRL

AZTECTRACE

WACO TRACE

INCA DRIVE

YU
RO

N T
RA

CE PONTONOC TRACE

WA
RR

IOR
S P

AT
H

SE
MIN

OL
E T

RA
CE

PO
NC

A T
RA

CE

CREE TRL

UTE TRL

TRAIL

S
H

E
E

T
 
T

I
T

L
E

:

SHEET        

A
B

O
O

H
A

 
T

O
K

L
O

 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
T

W
O

H
A

R
K

E
R

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

S
,
 
B

E
L

L
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 
P

L
A

N

P1

S:
\S

UB
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S\
20

-0
67

-D
-S

 (A
bo

oh
a 

To
kl

o 
A

d
d

iti
on

 - 
C

on
ce

pt
 P

la
n 

2 
- H

H)
\d

w
g\

20
-0

67
-D

-S
 A

bo
oh

a 
To

kl
o 

-S
ec

tio
n 

Tw
o 

- C
on

ce
pt

 P
la

n.
d

w
g 

11
/2

0/
20

20
 1

1:
02

 A
M

PROPERTY OWNERS:
Robert Sutton
1408 Warriors Path
Harker Heights, TX 76548

Jocelyn Kenworthy
305 Tomahawk Drive
Harker Heights, TX 76548

SURVEYOR/ENGINEER:
Mitchell & Associates, Inc.
P.O. Box 1088
Killeen, TX 76540

DEVELOPER:
Jerome Gomer
1524 Indian Trail
Harker Heights, TX 76548

NOTES:

1. Existing Land Use: Vacant
          Proposed Land Use: Duplex Residential (43 Lots)

2. Topography shown is based upon City of Harker Heights Aerial
Topography (2012).

3. Sidewalks to be installed along lot frontages at the time of
structure construction.

PROJECT
LOCATION

HARKERHEIGHTS CITYLIMITS

APPROVED

CONCEP
T

PLA
N

SE
CTIO

N O
NE

&

MIT
CH

EL

L

AS SO
C

IA
TES

N

E

S

W

CIVIL  ENGINEER
S

LA
ND SURVEYORS

E
S

T
.

 1
9

7
5





James Michael Jr. &
Lucia L. Lomardo

(Instrument No. 2014-7771)

Killeen ISD Middle School 14
(Plat Year 2019, No. 88)

1
Block A

D. Robinson Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 198-C)

4
Block 1

3 2 1

4
Block 1

3

56

Stephenson

Subdivision

(Cab. C, Slide 99-B)

Stonehill Subdivision
Phase 1

(Cab. D, Slide 66-D)
Stonehill Subdivision

Phase 2

Pontotoc Duplexes
Filing #1

(Plat Year 2015, 35)

8
Block 1

7
Block 1

Eliazar etux
Maria Mercedes

Mendoza
(Instrument No.

2018-30355)

11
Block 2

Antelope Run
(Cab. C, Slide 328-C)

Elesa Burks &
Marion J. Midgett
Called 0.41 Acre

(Vol. 4200, Page 225)

Ownership:
Killeen Independent School District

(Instrument No. 2019-19934)

Ownership:
Scott Royal

Trustee
(Instrument

No.
2018-35960)

60'

Ownership:
Stephan etux
Dominique

Dixon
(Instrument

No.
2018-44012)

Ownership:
Austin Tyler

Lee &
Jaqueline

J. Long
(Instrument

No.
2016-33813)

Ownership:
Raymond

Jones
(Instrument

No.
2019-33964)

James Allen
Ferguson

(Vol. 4025,
Page 237)

Delores Faulkner
(Instrument No.

2013-49951)

I.D.C. Addition
(Cab. C,

Slide 147-D)

1
Block 1

Ownership:
James J. Jacobs Sr.

(Vol. 5578, Page 510)

Joseph L.
Daigle

(Instrument
No.

2007-41031)

7A
Block 1

Ownership:
Enrique V.
Gonzalez

(Instrument No.
2019-44080))

6A

Ownership:
Dean S. Kozel

(Vol. 3748,
Page 100)

5A 4A 3A 2A 1A

Ownership:
Shondrick Hill
(Vol. 6017,
Page 110)

Ownership:
Sajid Kakana

(Instrument No.
2019-56445)

Ownership:
Jaybriel

Keola Akoi
(Instrument No.

2013-43608)

Ownership:
Patrick etux
Bobbie J.
Mendoza

(Instrument No.
2013-30878)

Ownership:
Juan etux Janice

M. Vazquez
Amended Plat of

Marley Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 123-A)

Jordanna D. Packwood
(Vol. 4132, Page 628)

Christine E. Sutton
(Vol. 1112, Page 794)

City of Harker Heights Limits

C
ity

 o
f H

ar
ke

r H
ei

gh
ts

 L
im

its

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Block 2 13 14 15 16 17 18

Tract B
Drainage Tract
0.163 Ac.

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20
Block 1

21 22 23 24

19

20

22 2321
Block 2

Tract A
Drainage Tract

0.574 Ac.

4
18

19

3

2
Block 1

1
Block 1

Abooha Toklo
Phase One

(2020-38421)

1, Block 1

Abooha Toklo
Phase 2A

(Not yet recorded)

Ownership
(Lots 1 & 2, Block 1):
Jerome Gomer
(Instrument No. 2020-49770)

1 2

3

1
2

TEJAS TRAIL

W
A

R
R

I
O

R
'
S

 
P

A
T

H

P
U

E
B

L
O

 
T

R
A

I
L

SANITARY MAIN (6-IN)

WATER MAIN (6-IN)

SANITARY MANHOLE

WATER VALVE

SEWER TAP

WATER TAP

F.H.A.

James Michael Jr. &
Lucia L. Lomardo

(Instrument No. 2014-7771)

D. Robinson Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 198-C)

4
Block 1

3 2 1

Stephenson

Subdivision

Pontotoc Duplexes
Filing #1

(Plat Year 2015, 35)

8
Block 1

7
Block 1

Eliazar etux
Maria Mercedes

Mendoza
(Instrument No.

2018-30355)

(Vol. 4200, Page 225)

Ownership:
Scott Royal

Trustee
(Instrument

No.
2018-35960)

60'

Ownership:
Stephan etux
Dominique

Dixon
(Instrument

No.
2018-44012)

Ownership:
Austin Tyler

Lee &
Jaqueline

J. Long
(Instrument

No.
2016-33813)

Ownership:
Raymond

Jones
(Instrument

No.
2019-33964)

James Allen
Ferguson

(Vol. 4025,
Page 237)

Delores Faulkner
(Instrument No.

2013-49951)

I.D.C. Addition
(Cab. C,

Slide 147-D)

1
Block 1

Ownership:
James J. Jacobs Sr.

(Vol. 5578, Page 510)

Joseph L.
Daigle

(Instrument
No.

2007-41031)

7A
Block 1

Ownership:
Enrique V.
Gonzalez

(Instrument No.
2019-44080))

6A

Ownership:
Dean S. Kozel

(Vol. 3748,
Page 100)

5A 4A 3A 2A 1A

Ownership:
Shondrick Hill
(Vol. 6017,
Page 110)

Ownership:
Sajid Kakana

(Instrument No.
2019-56445)

Ownership:
Jaybriel

Keola Akoi
(Instrument No.

2013-43608)

Ownership:
Patrick etux
Bobbie J.
Mendoza

(Instrument No.
2013-30878)

Ownership:
Juan etux Janice

M. Vazquez
Amended Plat of

Marley Addition
(Cab. C, Slide 123-A)

Jordanna D. Packwood
(Vol. 4132, Page 628)

Christine E. Sutton
(Vol. 1112, Page 794)

City of Harker Heights Limits

C
ity

 o
f H

ar
ke

r H
ei

gh
ts

 L
im

its

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Block 2 13 14 15 16 17 18

Tract B
Drainage Tract
0.163 Ac.

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

20
Block 1

21 22 23 24

19

20

22 2321
Block 2

Tract A
Drainage Tract

0.574 Ac.

4
18

19

3

2
Block 1

1
Block 1

Abooha Toklo
Phase One

(2020-38421)

1, Block 1

Abooha Toklo
Phase 2A

(Not yet recorded)

Ownership
(Lots 1 & 2, Block 1):
Jerome Gomer
(Instrument No. 2020-49770)

1 2

3

1
2

TEJAS TRAIL

W
A

R
R

I
O

R
'
S

 
P

A
T

H

P
U

E
B

L
O

 
T

R
A

I
L

21-013-D-S

***

2

47

13.74 Ac.

AR

AS SHOWN

March 2021DATE

DWN BY:

SCALE 

REF.:

BLK:

LOTS:

DWG #

AREA:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET

&

M

ITCHELL

A
S SOC I ATES

N

E

S

W

C
IV

I L
 ENGINEERS LAND

 S
UR

VE
YO

R
S

E S T .  1 9 7 5

FOR REGULATORY REVIEW

These plans and specifications

are preliminary in nature and

are for regulatory review only.

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS

ABOOHA TOKLO

PHASE THREE - PRELIMINARY

XXX

SHEET NAME

S:
\S

UB
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S\
21

-0
13

-D
-S

 (A
bo

oh
a 

To
kl

o 
3 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

 - 
HH

)\
d

w
g\

21
-0

13
-D

-S
 - 

Pl
an

 - 
Pr

el
im

 S
tre

et
s a

nd
 U

til
iti

es
.d

w
g 

3/
24

/2
02

1 
5:

51
 P

M

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

D

E

S

I

G

N

F

O

R

 

R

E

V

I

E

W

O

N

L

Y

Released for Construction

for a period of 12 months

from the date below.

City Representative      Date

FOR INTERIM REVIEW ONLY

These documents have been

released on

for the purpose of review and

comment under the authority of:

Ace Reneau, PE,

TX PE No. 136141

They are not to be used for

construction purposes.

March 16, 2020

FOR REVIEW ONLY

These documents are not

for regulatory approval,

permitting, or construction.

STATE  OF  TEXAS

L I CENSEDPROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

ACE RENEAU

136141

03
/2

4/
21

P101

STREETS, UTILITIES, & SIDEWALKS

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING WATER

EXISTING WATER

RELOCATED

FHA

FHA

FHA

FHA

TS&V

TS&V

ISOLATION

VALVE

5' SIDEWALK

EXISTING

SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MITCHELL & ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
102 N. COLLEGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KILLEEN, TEXAS 76541

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: (254) 634-5541 FAX: (254) 634-2141

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 3241 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. B. P. L. S. FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 100204-00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
160'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC HORIZONTAL SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.	ALL BACK OF CURB RETURN RADII ARE 15' UNLESS OTHERWISE ALL BACK OF CURB RETURN RADII ARE 15' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  2.	ALL SEWER AND WATER LINE CROSSINGS SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SEWER AND WATER LINE CROSSINGS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (TCEQ) CHAPTER 217, SUBBAPTER C, CONVENTIONAL COLLECTION SYSTEMS AND TCEQ CAPTER 290, SUBCHAPTER D, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS. 3.	DESIGN SHOWN IS PRELIMINARY IN NATURE. FINAL DESIGN DESIGN SHOWN IS PRELIMINARY IN NATURE. FINAL DESIGN SHALL MEET THE MINIMUM STANDARDS OF THE MOST CURRENT EDITION OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION, NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/16/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/24/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR



            CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

                  AGENDA ITEM #IX-2 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                         DATE: APRIL 13, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND SIGN A CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING 

SERVICES WITH FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. FOR THE WASTEWATER IMPACT 

FEE STUDY, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

With the increased residential development along and east of Warriors Path Road, the City of 

Harker Heights requested Thonhoff Consulting Engineers to conduct a sanitary sewer capacity 

study for the area east of Warriors Path Road.  Results of the study indicated the Evergreen-

Fawn Valley Lift Station located on Granite Trail Drive is currently at capacity.  To increase lift 

station and associated sanitary sewer infrastructure capacity to accommodate the additional 1,000 

homes, the projected engineering and construction cost would be $1,000,000.  

Since development is causing the demand for additional wastewater capacity, staff felt 

developers should pay their portion of the wastewater capacity improvements required for their 

subdivision through impact fees.  To implement impact fees within a city, a study must be 

completed defining the service area and the development of an impact fee capital improvement 

program along with at least two public hearings.  The study will be coordinated through a capital 

improvements advisory committee appointed by the City Council.  The impact fee study and the 

construction of the wastewater improvements would run simultaneously with the goal of having 

the additional wastewater capacity constructed within 1.5 years.   

Freese and Nichols recently completed a successful city-wide impact fee study for the City of 

Waco. 

The City Council workshopped the Freese and Nichols Wastewater Impact Fee Study proposal 

on April 6, 2021. 

Funds are included in the FY 2020-21 CIP budget for this project. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Public Works recommends authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and sign the Contract. 

 

ACTION BY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate 

and sign a Contract for engineering services with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for the Wastewater 

Impact Fee Study. 

2. Any other action desired. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution. 

2. Freese and Nichols Wastewater Impact Fee Study Proposal.  

3. Thonhoff Consulting Engineers Probable Cost Estimate. 

4.  Proposed Impact Fee Service Area Location Map. 
 



RESOLUTION NO._____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 

TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND SIGN A 

CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH FREESE AND NICHOLS, 

INC. FOR THE WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE STUDY. 

 

WHEREAS, Freese and Nichols, Inc. recently completed a successful city-wide impact fee 

study for the City of Waco; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Harker Heights study includes defining the service area and the 

development of an impact fee capital improvement program along with several public 

hearings.  The study will be coordinated through a capital improvements advisory committee 

appointed by the City Council.; and  

 

WHEREAS, funds are included in the FY 2020-21 CIP budget for this project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Freese and Nichols, Inc. is the most highly qualified 

provider on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications, and that the proposed 

Contract for engineering services for the study (“Agreement”) is in the public interest and 

should be approved; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Harker 

Heights, Texas: 

1. The facts and recitations set forth above are hereby found and declared to be true 

and correct. 

2. The proposed Agreement is hereby approved in all respects, including its form, 

terms and provisions. 

3. The City Manager, David Mitchell, is hereby authorized and empowered to act in 

the name and on behalf of the City to negotiate, execute and deliver the Agreement 

(and any changes therein and additions thereto as he shall determine to be 

necessary or advisable, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the 

execution and delivery thereof), together with any related consents, notices, 

certificates, acknowledgments, and other instruments, and to act as the 

representative of the City in any lawful way to perform or cause to be performed 

such other and further acts as may be reasonably necessary and appropriate to 

effectuate the said Agreement, and to accomplish the purposes of these resolutions. 

4. All actions taken or performed prior to the date hereof by any person herein 

authorized to act in respect to the matters referred to and approved in this 

Resolution be and hereby are ratified and confirmed in all respects. 



 2 

5. Any person, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, association, joint 

venture or other business entity may presume upon the validity of the acts of any 

person authorized herein to act, without further recourse to the governing 

documents, minutes or other proceedings of the City, and without joinder of any 

other officer or employee of the City. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on April 13, 2021, by the Harker Heights City Council. 

 

 

 

        CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 
                                                                        ____________________________________ 

    Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

    City of Harker Heights, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 

City of Harker Heights, Texas 

 



1 

 

City of Harker Heights 

Wastewater Impact Fee Study  

Scope of Work 
 

 

Project Understanding 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) understands that the City of Harker Heights is seeking to develop wastewater 

impact fees for the FM 2410 area, consistent with the requirements of Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 

Government Codes. The City seeks to do this by defining a service area, conducting an existing condition 

analysis, determining the growth for the 10-year planning period, developing an impact fee capital 

improvements program, defining a service unit equivalency table, and calculating the maximum fee per 

service-unit for the wastewater system. The study will be coordinated through a Capital Improvements 

Advisory Committee (appointed by the City) and culminate with adoption through a public hearing 

process. 

 

 

A. Data Collection and Land Use Assumptions  

 

A1. Project Kick-Off Meeting:  Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) will meet with the City to review scope, 

project team, schedule of the project, and discuss the data request memorandum.  

 

A2. Data Collection:  FNI will compile information from the City including GIS files, as-built drawings, 

lift station layouts, recently completed system improvements, utility billing data, and wastewater 

flow data. 
 

A3. Develop Land Use Assumptions:  FNI will utilize available data from previous studies to develop 5-

year, 10-year, and 20-year land use assumptions for the FM 2410 study area.  Land use 

assumptions will be expressed in terms of population. 

 

A4. Progress Meeting: Service Area and Land Use Assumptions: FNI will meet with the City to discuss 

the draft service area and land use assumptions.  
 

A5. Revise Land Use Assumptions: Based on comments received at the progress meeting, FNI will 

revise the land use assumptions and provide updated PDFs of maps and tables to the City.  
 

A6. Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #1:  FNI will conduct a presentation to the 

Citizen Advisory Committee to present an overview of impact fees and the land use assumptions.  

FNI will prepare presentation materials and exhibits for the Citizen Advisory Committee 

presentation. 
 

B. Wastewater CIP Development 

 

B1. Review Historical Wastewater Flows:  FNI will obtain and evaluate historical wastewater flow data 

to develop trends and calculate peaking factors.  This data will be used to determine expected 

per-capita loads for future projections.  

 



2 

 

B2. Develop and Distribute Wastewater Flow Projections:  FNI will validate the wastewater flow 

projections from previous studies for 5-year, 10-year, and 20-year conditions using the future land 

use assumptions and selected design criteria.   
 

B3. Develop Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan (CIP):  FNI will utilize the previous 

studies provided by the City and develop prioritization and costs for each proposed project in Year 

2021 dollars including engineering and contingencies.  FNI will also review recently completed 

wastewater improvements and determine which projects are eligible for future cost recovery from 

growth. Large scale citywide maps will be produced showing proposed projects, costs, and 

phasing. 

 

B4. Progress Meeting: Wastewater CIP:  FNI will meet with the City present the impact fee CIP.      
 

C. Land Use and CIP Report and Public Hearing 

 

C1. Develop Draft Land Use Assumptions and CIP Report:  Prepare a Draft Land Use Assumptions and 

CIP Report showing land use assumptions, impact fee eligible capital improvement costs.  Submit 

an electronic PDF copy of the draft report for City review. 

 

C2. Progress Meeting: Draft Land Use Assumptions and CIP Report: FNI will meet with City to discuss 

Draft Report and solicit comments. 

 

C3. Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #2:  FNI will conduct a presentation to the 

Citizen Advisory Committee to present the land use assumptions and the wastewater CIP.  FNI will 

prepare presentation materials and exhibits for the Citizen Advisory Committee presentation. 

 

C4. Finalize Land Use Assumptions and CIP Report: Based on comments by City staff, FNI will finalize 

and provide one (1) electronic PDF copy and ten (10) hardcopies of the final Land Use Assumptions 

and CIP Report. 

 

C5. Public Hearing #1 Land Use Assumptions and CIP: FNI will attend the Public Hearing to present 

and address questions about impact fee calculations. 

 

D. Wastewater Impact Fee Analysis 

 

D1. Conduct Wastewater Impact Fee Capacity Analysis for Existing Projects:  FNI will utilize the land 

use assumptions to analyze recently completed projects for remaining capacity for impact fee cost 

recovery for 10-year projected growth. 

 

D2. Conduct Wastewater Impact Fee Capacity Analysis for Proposed Projects: FNI will utilize the land 

use assumptions to analyze proposed wastewater improvements for eligible capacity for impact 

fee cost recovery for 10-year projected growth. 

 

D3. Calculate Project Costs Eligible for Impact Fee Cost Recovery:  FNI will utilize the capacity analysis 

and capital project costs to calculate the percentage of project cost eligible for impact fee cost 

recovery. 

 



3 

 

D4. Develop Service Unit Equivalents (SUEs):   FNI will utilize equivalent capacity of water meters to 

establish the service unit equivalents (SUEs) required in Chapter 395 of the Local Government 

Code for both existing and 10-year growth conditions. 

 

D5. Calculate Maximum Allowable Impact Fees:  FNI will develop maximum allowable wastewater 

impact fees using the 50% credit method based on the existing and proposed capital improvement 

costs to support 10-year growth based on projected increase in SUEs. 

 

D6. Progress Meeting: Impact Fee Calculations: FNI will meet with City staff to present the impact fee 

calculations.  
 

E. Impact Fee Report, Public Hearing, and Ordinance Support 

 

E1. Draft Impact Fee Report: FNI will prepare a draft report that documents the methodology, 

findings, and recommendations of the study.  FNI will submit electronic copies of the report to 

City Staff for review.   

 

E2. Progress Meeting: Draft Impact Fee Report:  FNI will meet with City to discuss Draft Report and 

solicit comments. 

 

E3. Finalize Impact Fee Report:  FNI will prepare a final Impact Fee Report and deliver an electronic 

PDF copy and ten (10) hard copies to the City. 

 

E4. Impact Fee Benchmarking:  Collect data on impact fees charged by neighboring utilities to 

benchmark against the City’s updated maximum allowable impact fees.  City staff and/or the CIAC 

will identify up to eight (8) area utilities for the comparison. 
 

E5. Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #3:  FNI will conduct a presentation to the 

Citizen Advisory Committee to present the impact fee calculations and benchmarking results.  FNI 

will prepare presentation materials and exhibits for the Citizen Advisory Committee presentation. 

 

E6. Public Hearing #2 Impact Fees:  FNI will attend the second Public Hearing to present and address 

questions about impact fee calculations. 

  



4 

 

 

Summary of Impact Fee Meetings 

 

(all meetings are assumed to be virtual by TEAMS, Zoom, or other platform)  

• Project Kick-Off Meeting  

• Progress Meeting: Service Areas and Land Use Assumptions  

• Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #1  

• Progress Meeting: Wastewater CIP  

• Progress Meeting: Draft Land Use Assumptions and CIP Report  

• Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #2  

• Public Hearing #1 Land Use Assumptions and CIP  

• Progress Meeting: Impact Fee Calculations  

• Progress Meeting: Draft Impact Fee Report  

• Citizen Advisory Committee Impact Fee Presentation #3  

• Public Hearing #2 Impact Fees  

 

Project Schedule 

 

FNI will complete the scope of work within 11 months of notice to proceed.  

 

Fee Summary 

Task Description Hours 

Total 

Labor 

Effort 

Total 

Expense 

Effort 

Total 

Effort 

A Data Collection and Land Use Assumptions 83 $12,662 $706 $13,368 

B Wastewater CIP Development 71 $10,545 $604 $11,149 

C Land Use and CIP Report and Public Hearing 68 $10,536 $813 $11,349 

D Wastewater Impact Fee Analysis 92 $13,702 $782 $14,484 

E Impact Fee Report, Public Hearing, and Ordinance Support  82 $12,578 $1,073 $13,651 

Total 396 $60,023 $3,977 $64,000 

 







Page 1 of 1 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

AGENDA ITEM #IX-3 

FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                      DATE: APRIL 13, 2021   

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER 

HEIGHTS, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING AND CONFIRMING AN ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 380 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT CODE, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

Chapter 380 of the Local Government Code authorizes the City to establish a program for 

economic development and to stimulate, encourage and develop business and commercial activity 

in the City.  These agreements between cities and private developers are often called “380 

Agreements” or “development agreements.”  The City has utilized 380 Agreements in the past to 

lure Marker Heights to the City as well as Seton Medical Center.  The Ordinance before you lays 

out an economic development program that: 

 

1. Clearly lays out the purpose of the program. 

2. Contractual protections for any incentives or benefits granted. 

3. Applicability of the program. 

4. The Economic Development Power of the City to include the possible uses of 

development agreements. 

5. Procedures for applying for a development incentive. 

6. Performance standards for development agreements. 

7. Provisions necessary in any development agreement. 

8. How and when loans and financing can occur. 

9. Level of incentives will be reviewed case by case. 

10. Program decision making is granted to the Council with the City Manager listed as the 

Council’s Program Administrator.     

11. Monitoring compliance of development agreements. 

 

This Ordinance is a best practice which sets out clear guidelines for how any economic 

development incentive request will be handled by the City.  This ensures the fair and equitable 

review of all requests while ensuring that the public’s interest in such agreements is maintained.  

The ordinance will be contained in a new chapter of our code – Chapter 40. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. __________________  
 

 

AN  ORDINANCE  OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, 

ESTABLISHING AND CONFIRMING AN ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 380 OF THE 

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Harker Heights is committed to the healthy 

economic development of the City of Harker Heights; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has both expressed and implied authority to establish a 

program to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes the City 

Council to establish a program for economic development and to stimulate, encourage and 

develop business and commercial activity within the City; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.   A new Chapter 40 – Economic Development Program is hereby adopted and 

incorporated into the Code of Ordinances of the City of Harker Heights as follows: 

 

Sec. 40-1  Purpose 

 

The purpose of the economic development program set forth in this chapter 

is to promote and facilitate the development and diversification of the economy of 

the City of Harker Heights and to create new jobs and businesses, retaining 

existing jobs and eliminating unemployment and underemployment in the City.  

The City Council is authorized to make such grants, loans or other incentives as 

are authorized by law to promote economic development and to stimulate 

business and commercial activity within the City of Harker Heights. 

 

Sec. 40-2  Incentives or Benefits 

 

Any incentive or benefit provided under this program, or under any 

economic development authority of the City of Harker Heights, shall be 

accompanied by contractual protections to ensure: 

 

1. the public purpose of economic development, creation of new jobs, 

retention of existing jobs and businesses, stimulation of the local economy, 



2 

 

economic diversification, limitation of unemployment or under employment may 

be served; 

 

2. there is protection and verifiable accountability for the handling of 

public money; 

 

3. the City receives consideration in the form of economic 

development benefits to the City and its citizens; and 

 

4. the City has remedies to recoup incentives, as appropriate, from a 

business if it fails to meet certain performance standards set by the City Council. 

 

Sec. 40-3  Applicability 

 

The scope of this program includes and applies to businesses and 

commercial activity relating to or engaged in manufacturing, assembly, 

warehousing/distribution or other industrial or commercial enterprises, including 

enterprises which create or facilitate tourism and provisional and technical 

support businesses.  This program may also apply to housing that promotes 

economic development and to other endeavors as authorized by state law.  As the 

creation of concrete performance measures relating to increased tourism may be 

difficult, tourism will generally be treated as an indirect factor in making decision 

on program projects. This program applies within the boundaries of the City of 

Harker Heights and any extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City. 

 

Sec. 40-4  Economic Development Power 

 

A. Texas Local Government Code §380.001 authorizes the City to use 

employees or funds, make loans or grants of public money and provide personnel 

and services of the City and take other actions to support the City’s program of 

economic development and to carry out its purposes.  The City may also accept 

contributions, gifts or other resources to develop and administer the program.  The 

City has authority to do all things authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local 

Government Code. 

 

B. Possible uses of the authority created by §380.001 include, but are 

not limited to: 

 

  1. loans, lease purchases, grants or financing for site 

acquisition or development; 

 

  2. in kind services such as site preparation using City 

equipment, personnel or contractors; 

 

  3. grants or assistance promoting economic development; or 

 



3 

 

  4. waiver or rebate of permits or other fees. 

 

Sec. 40-5  Development Incentives 

 

A. Development incentives, including those identified in this chapter, 

will be provided in accordance with this program and state law.  

 

B. To be considered for development incentives, a business must 

provide the following information for review by the City: 

 

1. name of company; 

 

2. form of business (corporation, partnership, etc.); 

 

3. state of incorporation or organization; 

 

4. proof of authority to do business in this state; 

 

5. history of business and description of its operations and 

other locations; 

 

6. management summary/biography as required by the City; 

and 

 

7. audited or equivalent financial statements as required by 

the City. 

 

Sec. 40-6  Performance Standard 

 

A. In order to qualify for development incentives of any sort from the 

City, a business must enter into a development agreement setting forth various 

economic development performance standards that the business agrees to meet.  

In determining the eligibility of a business for development incentives and/or 

advisability of making incentives, as well as the level and type of incentives to be 

provided, the City will consider various factors including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

 

1. the level of capital investment or increase of the City’s tax 

base; 

 

2. the number of jobs to be created or maintained; 

 

3. the level of wages and benefits for jobs created and the 

total payroll;  

 



4 

 

4. the “fit” of the business within the City’s overall 

development concept and goals; 

 

5. the impact of the project or business on the creation or 

retention of jobs within the City; and 

 

6. the opportunity for future expansion of the business. 

 

B. The City may also consider indirect factors such as increase in the 

expected level of purchases of products and services from local sources, indirect 

employment gains, increased tourism, or environmental impact of the business. 

 

Sec. 40-7  Development Agreement 

 

Any business receiving an incentive from the City must enter into a 

development agreement with the City in a form and containing the terms 

approved by the City Council and the City’s legal counsel.  Such an agreement 

will include, but not be limited to:   

 

1. identification of the development incentives and terms of 

payment or development of such incentives; 

 

2.  identification of the economic development performance 

standards that the business must meet and the identification of deadlines for 

construction of improvements, start of operations or meeting specific 

employment or payroll standards, as appropriate; 

 

3. remedies for the City’s recovery of development incentives 

if the business fails to comply with the economic development performance 

standards; 

 

4. provision for inspections and reports determined by the 

City to be necessary to review the compliance of the business with the 

economic development performance standards; 

 

5. other provisions considered necessary or proper by the City 

or its legal counsel;  

 

6. a venue provision providing all disputes will be heard in a 

court of competent jurisdiction sitting in Bell County, Texas with Texas law 

to control; and 

 

7. a provision requiring that any subsequent purchaser of the 

business or assignee abide by the economic development obligations of the 

business, for so long as the same shall exist, prohibiting subleases and 

requiring the approval of the City for any assignment, which approval shall 



5 

 

not be unreasonably withheld if the assignee assumes the business’ 

obligation to the City and is deemed financially able and competent to carry 

out those obligations.  

 

Sec. 40-8  Financing and Loans 

 

A. Financing by the City through loans for eligible projects will 

require documentation as well as liens and security interests substantially similar 

to that found in bank financings.  All financing documents must be approved by 

the City’s legal counsel.  In some cases, the City may determine that personal 

guarantees are required. 

 

B. The City will determine the manner in which all loans will be 

made, and such documentation as may be necessary to obtain any draw of loan 

proceeds.  In that regard, the City may require a draw request to be accompanied 

by a lien release, affidavit or other documentation for the City’s protection. 

 

C. Any construction contract funded by a loan from the City must 

provide for performance and payment bonds in the amount of the cost of the work 

with both the business and City as beneficiary and provide for at least a five 

percent (5%) retainage.  The business must also provide or cause to be provided 

property insurance on the financed project in the amount of the replacement cost, 

which insurance must name the City as a loss payee.  Liability insurance naming 

the City as an additional insured will also be required.  

 

Sec. 40-9  Other Program Characteristics 

 

It is the intention of the City Council that this program shall have a broad 

scope in order that continued development of the City’s economy can be realized.  

The City shall have the right and power to use any development incentives 

identified herein or otherwise authorized by state law to promote economic 

development through eligible projects anywhere within the City or its 

extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

 

Sec. 40-10  Level of Development Incentives 

 

It is difficult to establish a bright line standard for the level of development 

incentives that may be offered to a business.  A determination of the level of 

incentive, or to provide any incentive at all, will be made on a case by case basis, 

taking into account the factors set forth in this article and other factors relating to 

the economic development of the City.  Some general rules are recognized: 

 

1. Grants, as opposed to loans or in kind services, will generally 

require a greater level of benefit to the local economy or tax base provided by the 

business; 

 



6 

 

2. Provision of increased employment is preferred to increased capital 

investment alone; 

 

3. Both quantity and quality of jobs is important.  Jobs created must 

be quality full-time jobs.  The City Council may require that the average or 

minimum wages paid in connection with the business meet standards as set forth 

in the development agreement; 

 

4. The jobs created must be located within the City of Harker Heights 

or its extraterritorial jurisdiction to be considered; 

 

5. Jobs to be filled by persons actually residing within or to reside 

within the City of Harker Heights and its surrounding area will be given greater 

consideration than jobs that may be filled by persons commuting to the City. 

 

Sec. 40-11   Program Administration 

 

A. The City Council shall have and retain control and final decision-

making authority over all aspects of the program.  However, as authorized by law, 

the City Council may designate or appoint another entity or person for the 

administration of the program.  The City Manager shall serve as the City’s 

Program Administrator.   

 

B. The Program Administrator’s duties may include, but will not be 

limited to: 

 

  1. identifying target businesses or industries; 

 

  2. negotiating tentative development incentives and economic 

development performance standards with businesses in coordination with the 

City’s legal counsel;  

 

  3. analyzing the feasibility of proposed projects and the ability 

of businesses to perform; 

 

  4. recommending development incentives, if any, economic 

performance standards and other terms of a development agreement to the City 

Council; and 

 

  5. assisting in monitoring and evaluating business compliance 

with economic development performance standards and the development 

agreement. 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

Sec. 40-12   Monitoring Compliance 

 

A. Any business making application for an economic development 

incentive or receiving an incentive must provide all records and reports 

reasonably requested by the City or its program administrator to determine the 

business’ compliance with the development agreement. 

 

B. The business must allow the City, the project administrator or any 

representative or consultant of either to inspect the business premises and 

improvements thereon to determine compliance with the development agreement. 

 

C. Defaults may be enforced by actions up to and including: 

 

  1. complete cancellation of development incentives; 

 

  2. recovery of previously provided development incentives; 

 

  3. retaking of property by the City if the sale or lease of 

property was a part of the project; and/or 

 

  4. partial or pro rata reduction or recovery of development 

incentive. 

 

D. The terms of default provisions in the development agreement will 

be as negotiated; however, all program project agreements must contain adequate 

default provisions to comply with applicable law. 

 

 

 

PASSED on this the ________ day of __________________, 2021. 

 

     CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS 

 

 

     By:________________________________ 

      Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

City Secretary 



            CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

         AGENDA ITEM # IX-4 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                         DATE: APRIL13, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR AN EXEMPTION FROM 

THE PARK CURFEW TO THE AIR FORCE TACTICAL AIR CONTROL PARTY 

ASSOCIATION FOR A 24-HOUR MEMORIAL RUN ON APRIL 29-30, 2021, AND 

TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 
EXPLANATION: 

The Air Force Tactical Air Control Party Association (TACP) is requesting to host a 24-Hour 

Run at Carl Levin Park from Thursday, April 29th to Friday, April 30th, 2021. This annual event 

with the Air Force Tactical Air Control Party Airmen is hosted around the world on the same 

date. It is intended to honor the fallen, the living, and support those in need in relation to the 

TACP community. This event was first hosted at Carl Levin Park in March of 2019 and was 

scheduled for March of 2020 but was cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

By Ordinance, Section 105.04, all of our parks have a curfew from 11:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m. that 

can be waived by permission from City Council. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

None 
 

ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL:  

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a request for an exemption of the Parks Curfew for 

the Air Force Tactical Air Control Party Association 24-Hour Run at Carl Levin Park 

from Thursday, April 29th to Friday, April 30th, 2021. 

2. Any other action desired. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application for Facility Rental – Parks & Recreation 

2. Additional Texas Health and Human Services Precautions 
 

 

 

 
 

. 
  

  
 











1. The likelihood of individuals over the age of 65 attending 

a. TACP thinks that most participants will be under the age of 65. They are 

expecting most runners to be military members and most members are not 

stationed near their parents and grandparents. 

 

2. The density of the forum and ability to ensure social distancing of 6 feet between 

individuals 

a. For COVID mitigation actions, TACP plans on promoting social distancing with 

other parties that might be partaking. Their unit has divided into four different 

groups and each group will only run during their assigned 6-hour block. They will 

also have hand sanitizers at the starting point for participants to use at their own 

leisure. 


	Agenda
	Proclamations
	Consent Item V-1
	Public Hearings Item VII-1
	Public Hearings Item VII-2
	Public Hearings Item VII-3
	Public Hearings Item VII-4
	Public Hearings Item VII-5
	New Business Item IX-1
	New Business Item IX-2
	New Business Item IX-3
	New Business Item IX-4
	BYOB_CC_Staff_Report_040821_NEW.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM #VII-5




